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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-ZE-—tE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2016
T
HK$'000
FE A Interest income 6 902,333 816,314
FE X Interest expense 7 (394,755) (325,672)
AR S WA Net interest income 507,578 490,642
BEHRHAR 2220 Net premiums earned 8 352,414 315,004
HAw g A Other income 9 414,484 213,104
Z5 1 'ON Operating income 1,274,476 1,018,750
RS2 Net claims incurred 8 (641) (4,066)
il gupet Net commission expenses 8 (140,454) (116,959)
ZELH Operating expenses 10 (304,196) (276,693)
RITBERTHZ E& T Operating profit before impairment 829,185 621,032
WRORE (k&) (Charge)/write-back of loan impairment
1% allowances 13 (453) 713
RREE B F Profit before taxation 828,732 621,745
I Taxation 14(a) (22,337) (17,761)
REE R Profit for the year 806,395 603,984
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et EWE
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE-Z-—tE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2017

REE R Profit for the year 806,395 603,984
HitemEis : Other comprehensive income:
HEWREFD»EREBRRN Items that are or may be reclassified

mA : subsequently to profit or loss:
ATt SIS Available-for-sale securities:

— R B E — net unrealised gains 191,162 733

— HENAFEZINEA — fair value changes transferred to

a5k income statement on disposal 12 (83,161) (122,970)

— I — tax effect 14(b) 17,195 20,024
NEEEMSEmES (TH) - Other comprehensive income/(loss)

2 B R In for the year, net of tax 125,196 (102,213)
AEELAEKZE LM Total comprehensive income

for the year 931,591 501,771

5 158E 248 Figk M+ N A M B IRRE—385 »  The notes on pages 158 to 248 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

EERBISARAT —=—+t&F1% 153



LRE W SRR

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

F=E—tF+=A=+—H
as at 31 December 2017

2016
FHET
HK$'000
B ASSETS
NeREHrRe Cash and short-term funds 16 25,278,190 23,815,671
RIF B RS 5K Interest and remittance receivables 17 343,978 359,409
TTESRMIEAE Derivative financial instruments 18 333,727 245,097
A E S Loan portfolio, net 19 7,829,441 9,533,961
IR Investment securities:
—AHEE — available-for-sale 20(a) 7,138,662 6,977,677
—REEIH — held-to-maturity 20(b) 10,347,834 9,931,665
R~ e REMAE Prepayments, deposits and other assets 22 67,154 359,809
TE R Fixed assets 23 34,329 18,527
12 RE R T2 72 Deferred tax assets 14(b) 295 =
BIRE R Reinsurance assets 26 164,601 146,027
BiE B Total assets 51,538,211 51,387,843
AR LIABILITIES
INERRAIYSS Interest payable 24 192,133 218,153
RIASORIN ~ R & Accounts payable, accrued expenses
E b and other liabilities 25 5,363,263 5,228,393
PTESRITA Derivative financial instruments 18 119,064 1,702,859
L AR IR (5 Current tax liabilities 14(b) 116,288 94,745
156 JE 75 067 {7 Deferred tax liabilities 14(b) - 16,660
{RB& T 5 Insurance liabilities 26 1,130,150 1,048,550
B RITHRFIEE Debt securities issued 27 34,840,706 34,233,467
AR EE Total liabilities 41,761,604 42,542,827
& EQUITY
i Share capital 28 2,000,000 2,000,000
REB T Retained profits 5,889,254 5,023,307
MBS 25 Contingency reserve 1,679,837 1,739,389
NEERES Fair value reserve 207,516 82,320
&Y=kl Total equity 9,776,607 8,845,016
5 R 2= B Total liabilities and equity 51,538,211 51,387,843

7

FRER Norman T. L. Chan =S Raymond L. C. Li
AIEEFAITESE Deputy Chairman and Executive Director #177%& F# S & Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BE-Z-—tE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2017

REFEAN G
Attributable to equity holders
A REERF REEE  ATERS B
Share Retained Contingency  Fair value
capital profits reserve reserve Total
irE AT AT AT AT AT
Note HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
F-B-RE-A-H4% Balance as at 1 January 2016 2,000,000 5,251,052 1,632,660 184,533 9,068,245
KER R Profit for the year = 603,984 = = 603,984
A2l - Other comprehensive income:
AL ETR Available-for-sale securities - - - (102,213) (102,213)
FEE2AKREH Total comprehensive income for the year - 603,984 - (102,213) 501,771
BRE MR AL HS Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
XU AR 3% 48149 50% 3% 75% premium earned from retained
ZNRIES profits to contingency reserve - (183,043) 183,043 - =
AN AR R EREBEH Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits - 76,314 (76,314) - -
BENZE-RFRE Dividends paid related to 2015 15 - (725,000) - - (725,000)
F-E-A~E+ZA=+-—HB%% Balance as at 31 December 2016 2,000,000 5,023,307 1,739,389 82,320 8,845,016
REF T Profit for the year - 806,395 - - 806,395
Htie A : Other comprehensive income:
AR EIT A Available-for-sale securities - - - 125,196 125,196
AEELERREEN Total comprehensive income for the year - 806,395 - 125,196 931,591
BARRRFEAD HH Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk
B IR 2% &) 50% 5% 75% premium earned from retained
ZXRAES profits to contingency reserve - (200,730) 200,730 - =
BN A SR ERE G Release of contingency reserve to
retained profits - 260,282 (260,282) - -
F-E-tF+=HA=1—H%% Balance as at 31 December 2017 2,000,000 5889254 1,679,837 207,516 9,776,607

F 158248 T Fra [t T her & MRz —884 o The notes on pages 158 to 248 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BE-ZE-—tE+-A=+—-HLEE
for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
F#&T F&T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ARENS2RERE Cash flows from operating activities
ZE Operating profit 828,732 621,745
AT EIEH Y FEE - Adjustment for:
FEUA Interest income (924,105) (834,188)
FMEZE Interest expense 355,859 271,768
A% S WA Dividend income 9 (82,878) (83,440)
Eils) Depreciation 10 14,415 15,885
BRI TS UE ST LRSS Amortisation of discount on debt
securities issued 38,896 53,904
RO ERK & (E) Charge/(write-back) of loan impairment
allowances 13 453 (713)
IEHIE RN M4 Amortisation of premium on investment
securities 21,772 17,874
e R s 8 Net gains on disposal of investments 12 (163,538) (159,841)
& B E R E’JH&Zm Gain on disposal of fixed assets (1) (20)
TRIANFEEY Change in fair value of financial
instruments 2,661 10,171
BUF S Interest received 949,834 798,876
BAFLE Interest paid (381,879) (224,468)
RITARE R RAGZENE Cash flows from operating activities before
ZEWSHEI€RE changes in operating assets and liabilities 660,221 487,553
REEAR BN =AM Change in time deposits with original
EHFERES maturity of more than three months 7,520,837 (4,468,020)
RWCC KA 5 Change in remittance receivables (10,298) 2,681
RN ~ e R EH AL Change in prepayments, deposits and
BRI D) other assets 290,684 (271,363)
WHBEET Change in loan portfolio 1,704,067 1,969,064
MATIRIN ~ R4S FF 52 I Change in accounts payable, accrued
R ) expenses and other liabilities 134,870 432,970
RS AR AR S Change in insurance liabilities, net 63,026 52,331
LA ZEE Exchange differences (122,758) 28,433
ZEWSFE/(ER) 2% Cash generated from/(used-in) operation 10,240,649 (1,766,351)
E;EL/ (B FiIm Taxation refund/(paid) 1,417 (53,785)
RBEWS=E(FR)Z Net cash generated from/(used-in)
ﬂ'ﬁﬁ@a operating activities 10,242,066 (1,820,136)
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2017

{hpzs FET
Notes HK$'000
REEH2NERE Cash flows from investing activities
V) 3K [ & &R 7= Purchase of fixed assets 23 (30,217) (7,782)
4 2 a] ¢t B B UE 25 Purchase of available-for-sale securities  20(a) (3,144,426) (4,422,019)
TSEH5 B = B 5 5 Purchase of held-to-maturity securities 20(b) (3,112,996) (676,237)
& K s ] a] 4 H &SI A Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FT1S 30m available-for-sale securities 3,293,121 4,112,006
HE KB A 2 B Bk 5 Proceeds from sale and redemption of
FIT1S 50 held-to-maturity securities 2,746,656 981,760
& B e R 7 AT S 3R Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 1 20
BRI HEIEAAR S Dividend received from available-for-sale
securities 82,878 83,440
WRED(ER),FHEZ Net cash (used in)/generated from
& 3N investing activities (164,983) 71,188
BEESMAESRA S (FRH) Net cash inflows/(outflows) before
A financing 10,077,083 (1,748,948)
REE 2 NERE Cash flows from financing activities
RITIEFETIS RN Proceeds from bank borrowings 43,250,917 56,834,109
BEERITIER Repayment of bank borrowings (43,250,917)  (56,834,109)
KT UE 25 TS 500 Proceeds from issue of debt securities 27 28,397,542 24,501,707
BB A1TRSB IS Redemption of debt securities issued 27 (29,509,026) (23,686,351)
B E Dividends paid 15 = (725,000)
BRED (ER) FEZ Net cash (used in)/generated from
W& 25 financing activities (1,111,484) 90,356
NERERNESTE M, Net increase/(decrease) in
ORi>) 28 cash and cash equivalents 8,965,599 (1,658,592)
FHYESRERY ST E Beginning cash and cash equivalents 6,102,834 7,762,550
ICENNERZEFNETE I Effect of exchange rates on
cash and cash equivalents 17,757 (1,124)
FRYUSRZERITSME Ending cash and cash equivalents 16 15,086,190 6,102,834

51585243 T ek T NiZ B M E IR —E85 = The notes on pages 158 to 248 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements
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Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited (Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the Group) have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ((HKFRSs) which is a collective
term and includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRS), Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASSs) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of available-for-sale investment securities, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments)
carried at fair value.

The accounting policies and the methods of computation used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1. Adoption of HKFRSs

@)

New and amended standards effective on 1 January
2017

The following amendments to HKFRSs effective in 2017
are relevant to the Group:

Disclosure initiative — Amendments to HKAS 7;

o Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised
losses — Amendments to HKAS 12; and

° Disclosure of interest in entities classified as held
for sale — Amendments to HKFRS 12.

The amendments to HKFRSs effective in 2017 have no
material impact on the Group.

New standards, amendments and interpretations
issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretations are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2017, and have not been
applied in preparing these consolidated financial
statements. None of these is expected to have
a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group, except the following set out
below:
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mEMEIRERME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” addresses
requirements for classification, measurement
and derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities, introduces new rules for
hedge accounting and a new impairment model
for financial assets.

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at
(1) amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Debt financial
instruments that do not meet a “solely payment
of principal and interest” (SPPI) test, including
those that contain embedded derivatives, be
classified at initial recognition as FVPL. For
debt financial instruments that meet the SPPI
test, classification at initial recognition will be
determined based on the business model under
which these financial assets are managed.
Equity financial instruments are required to be
measured at FVPL with the irrevocable option at
inception to present changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income not recycling (i.e. any
gain/loss could not be recycled to profit or loss
while the dividend is recognised through profit or
l0ss). The Group has reviewed its financial assets
and liabilities and is expecting the following
impact from the adoption of the new standard on
1 January 2018:
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The debt financial instruments held by the Group
include:

— debt instruments currently classified as
available-for-sale financial assets which
meet the conditions for classification at
FVOCI based on the Group’s business
model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the instruments; and

— debt instruments currently presented as
held-to-maturity financial assets and loan
portfolio which satisfy the conditions for
classification at amortised cost based
on the Group’s business model and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the
new standard to affect the classification and
measurement of these financial assets.

The Group’s other investment securities
in exchange-traded funds and real estate
investments trusts that are currently classified as
available-for-sale amounting to HK$1,657.8 million
will be reclassified to financial assets at FVPL.
Related accumulated fair value gains of HK$203.3
million will be transferred retrospectively as at 1
January 2018 from fair value reserve to retained
profits.
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mEMEIRERME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For financial liabilities there were no changes
to classification and measurement except for
the recognition of changes in own credit risk
in other comprehensive income, for liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Classification of financial liabilities will remain
largely unchanged for the Group.

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change
the requirements relating to measuring and
recognising ineffectiveness under HKAS 39.
However, HKFRS 9 relaxes the requirements
for hedge effectiveness by replacing the bright
line hedge effectiveness tests and adopting a
more principles-based approach. It requires an
economic relationship between the hedged item
and hedging instrument and for the hedged ratio
to be the same as the one management actually
use for risk management purposes. The current
hedge relationships will qualify as continuing
hedges under HKFRS 9.
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The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses (ECL) rather than
only incurred credit losses as is the case under
HKAS 39. Under the ECL model, it will no longer
be necessary for a loss event to occur before
an impairment 10ss is recognised. Instead, an
entity is required to recognise and measure
either: (i) 12-month ECL; or (ii) lifetime ECL for
those financial assets which have experienced
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition or when there is objective evidence
of impairment. It applies to financial assets
classified at amortised cost and debt instruments
measured at FVOCI. Financial assets subject
to ECL methodology are categorised into three
stages. Stage 1 is comprised of all non-impaired
financial assets which have not experienced
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Entities are required to recognise
12 months of ECL for Stage 1 financial assets in
profit and loss. Stage 2 is comprised of all non-
impaired financial assets which have experienced
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Financial assets are classified as
Stage 3 when there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more 10ss
events that have occurred after initial recognition
with a negative impact on estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets. Based on the
assessments undertaken to date, the Group
expects an increase in the loss allowance by
approximately HK$2.8 million for those financial
assets categorised at Stage 1 (no loss allowance
for those financial assets categorised at Stage
2 and 3), which will be made to the opening
balances of net assets and retained profits at 1
January 2018.
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The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the
year of the adoption of the new standard.

The standard is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The
Group will apply the standard when it becomes
effective in 2018 without restating comparative
information. The Group will recognise any
transition adjustments against the opening
balance of retained profits or reserves at 1
January 2018.

HKFRS 16 “Leases” sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases. The standard introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires
a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. A
lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. HKFRS 16
will result in almost all leases being recognised
on the statement of financial position, as the
distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements
in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance
leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.
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The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$144,172,000
(Note 30). The Group is yet to assess the full
impact of the standard on its financial position
and results of operations. The standard is
mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.

HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” establishes
a comprehensive global insurance standard
which provides guidance on the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosures
of insurance contracts. The standard requires
entities to measure insurance contract liabilities
at their current fulfilment values. The Group is
yet to assess the full impact of the standard on
its financial position and results of operations.
The new standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and will
be applied retrospectively with restatement of
comparatives unless impracticable. At this stage,
the Group does not intend to adopt the standard
before its effective date.

There are no other HKFRSs that are not yet
effective that would be expected to have a
material impact on the Group.
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2.2. Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December 2017.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities
used for issuing mortgage-backed securities, namely HKMC
Funding Corporation (1) Limited and Bauhinia MBS Limited)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interests in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or l0ss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the
investment in the subsidiaries is stated at cost less provision
for impairment allowances. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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2.3.

2.4,

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all interest bearing financial instruments using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss.

Other income other than those arising from
insurance and guarantee contracts under Note 2.22

(@) Feeincome

Fees are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Upfront
arrangement fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate in determining interest
income on the loans.
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2.5.

(b) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
loans and receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and
available-for-sale investments. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition.

(@) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets
held for trading, and those designated as at fair value
through profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is
classified as held for trading if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term or if it is part
of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence
of recent actual pattern of short-term profit-making.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges.

A financial asset is typically classified as fair value
through profit or loss at inception if it meets the
following criteria:

()  the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or financial
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases; or
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(i) a group of financial assets and/or financial
liabilities is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or
investment strategy, and this is the basis on
which information about the financial assets and/
or financial liabilities is provided internally to the
key management personnel; or

(i)~ financial assets, such as debt securities held,
containing one or more embedded derivatives
which significantly modify the cash flows, can be
designated at fair value through profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and for which the
Group has no intention of trading immediately or in the
short term.

Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities that the Group’s management has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.
Where the Group sold or reclassified held-to-maturity
assets (i) other than due to an isolated event that is
beyond the Group’s control, is non-recurring and could
not have been reasonably anticipated by the Group,
such as a significant deterioration in the issuer’s
creditworthiness; or (i) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category
would be reclassified as available-for-sale.
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Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other categories.
Available-for-sale investments are those intended to
be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rate, exchange rate or market prices. They are
initially recognised at fair value including direct and
incremental transaction costs. They are subsequently
held at fair value.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-
to-maturity investments are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (fair
value reserve), until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in equity is reclassified
to income statement. However, interest calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the income statement. Dividends on available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in the income
statement when the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.
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If an asset measured at fair value has a bid price and
an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread that is
most representative of fair value in the circumstances
shall be used to measure fair value. If there is no active
market for a financial asset, the Group establishes fair
value by using valuation technigues. These include
the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation
techniques commonly used by market participants.

The Group may choose to reclassify financial assets that
would meet the definition of loans and receivables out of the
available-for-sale categories if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value
gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are
subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial
assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-
maturity categories are determined at the reclassification
date.
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2.6. Impairment of financial assets

(@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (loss event) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
assets is impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about the following loss
events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor,;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinguency in interest or principal payments;

o the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, a concession that the Group
would not otherwise consider;

o initiation of bankruptcy proceedings or other
financial reorganisation,

. the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or
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. observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recognition of those assets, although
the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant. For exposures which
are not individually significant, the Group will assess
impairment either individually or collectively. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment 10ss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced through the use of an allowance account
and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract.
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The calculation of the present value of estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less
costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether
or not foreclosure is probable.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of
impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis
of similar credit risk characteristics which are relevant
to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability
to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in
the group and historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current
conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for groups
of assets should reflect and be directionally consistent
with changes in related observable data from period
to period which are indicative of changes in the
probability of losses in the group and their magnitude.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Group
to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

When a loan is uncollectable, it is written off against
the related allowance for loan impairment at the
discretion of the Credit Committee. Such loans
are written off after all the necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss
has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off decrease the amount
of the allowance for loan impairment in the income
Statement.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale investments

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that an available-
for-sale investment or a group of available-for-sale
investments is impaired. For debt securities, the Group
uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case
of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
income statement — is removed from equity and
recognised in the income statement. If, in a subsequent
period, the fair value of the instrument classified as
available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in income statement,
the impairment loss to the extent of such change is
reversed through the income statement.

Renegotiated loans

Loans that are either subject to collective impairment
assessment or individually significant and whose terms
have been renegotiated are treated as renegotiated
loans.
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2.7. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified into two categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. All the financial liabilities are classified at
inception and recognised initially at fair value.

Debt securities issued in the statement of financial position
include (i) notes issued under the Debt Issuance Programme
(DIP); and (ii) notes issued under the Medium Term Note
(MTN) Programme.

These notes are initially designated as either (i) financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss; or (ii) other
financial liabilities.

The notes (including those issued with embedded derivative
instruments) designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition are carried at fair value, with changes
in fair value being recorded in the income statement. Those
notes which are designated as hedged items under a fair
value hedge are adjusted for the fair value changes subject
to the risk being hedged.

The notes designated as other financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value, which is the fair value of the
consideration received, net of transaction costs incurred.
The notes are subsequently stated at amortised costs; any
difference between proceeds net of transaction costs and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the debt securities using the effective
interest method.

On redemption/repurchase of the notes, the resulting gains
or losses, being the difference between the redemption/
repurchase amount and the carrying amount, are recognised
in the income statement in the period in which the
redemption/repurchase takes place.
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2.8.

2.9.

Recognition and de-recognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investments are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and
receivables are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or where the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and debt securities issued are recognised on the trade
date. Other financial liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from
the statement of financial position when and only when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subseqguently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from market prices in active markets, including
recent market transactions, and valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow models and options pricing
models, as appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets
when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair value
iS negative. Interest receivables and payables arising from
derivatives are separately presented in the statement of
financial position.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e. the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.
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The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or
loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged. The Group designates certain derivatives as either: (i)
hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or
firm commitments (fair value hedge); or (i) hedges of highly
probable future cash flows attributable to a recognised asset
or liability, or a forecast transaction (cash flow hedge).
Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this
way provided certain criteria are met.

The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on
an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

(@) Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are
designated and qualified as fair value hedges are
recorded in the income statement, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount of
a hedged item for which the effective interest method
is used, is amortised to income statement over the
period to maturity.

(b)y Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash
flow hedges are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to the
income statement in the periods in which the hedged
item will affect income statement.
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When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or
when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in
equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised
in the income statement. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately
transferred to the income statement.

(c) Derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting
purposes

Derivative instruments entered into as economic
hedges that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
held at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the
fair value of any derivative instrument are recognised
immediately in the income statement.

2.10.0ffsetting financial instruments

2.11.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed collateral assets are accounted as assets held
for sale and reported in “Other assets” and the relevant
loans are derecognised. The repossessed collateral assets
are measured at lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.
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2.12.Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is the
person or group that allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of the operating segments of an entity. The
Group has determined the Chief Executive Officer as its chief
operating decision maker.

2.13.Foreign currency translation

(@)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (functional currency). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000),
which is the Company’s functional and the Company’s
and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are
translated with the closing rate as at the reporting
date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost
denominated in a foreign currency are translated with
the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition;
non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are
measured at fair value are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.
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In the case of changes in the fair value of monetary
assets denominated in foreign currency classified
as available-for-sale, a distinction is made between
translation differences resulting from changes in
amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount, except impairment, are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss
are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

2.14.Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their

estimated useful lives.

Leasehold improvements — over the unexpired period of the lease

Furniture and fixtures over the unexpired period of the lease
Computer 3years
Office equipment 3years
Motor vehicle 4 years
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The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain and loss on disposal is determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. It is included in the income
statement.

2.15.Impairment of investment in subsidiaries

Impairment testing of the investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividend from that subsidiary if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary concerned in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of the subsidiary’s net assets including goodwill in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.16.Current and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised where it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is
provided on temporary differences arising from investment
in the subsidiary, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale investments, which are charged or credited
directly to other comprehensive income, is also credited
or charged directly to other comprehensive income and is
subsequently recognised in the income statement together
with the deferred gain or loss.

2.17.Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of each reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave, maternity or
paternity leave are recognised when the absence
ocCcurs.

(b) Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses, based on a formula that takes into
consideration the profit after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created constructive obligations.
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(c) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme
and a defined contribution scheme, the assets of which
are generally held in separate trustee — administered
funds. These pension plans are generally funded by
payments from employees and by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident
fund scheme and defined contribution scheme are
expensed as incurred.

2.18.Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
where it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has
been reliably estimated.

Where the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation.

2.19.Leases

(@) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. The Group entered into
operating leases primarily as lessee. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the
lease period has expired, any payment required to be
made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as
an expense in the period in which termination takes
place.
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(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. The Group entered into finance leases
primarily as lessor. Finance leases are capitalised as
receivables at the lease’s commencement at the lower
of the fair value of the leased property and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The difference
between the gross receivable and the present value
of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance
income. Lease income is recognised over the term
of the lease using the net investment method, which
reflects a constant periodic rate of return. Hire
purchase contracts having the characteristics of a
finance lease are accounted for in the same manner as
finance leases. Impairment allowances are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.6.

2.20.Cash and cash equivalents

2.21.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including
cash and balances with banks that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due.

Financial guarantee contracts are accounted for as insurance

contracts in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 2.22 (b).
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2.22.Insurance and other guarantee contracts

(@)

Mortgage insurance contracts

The mortgage insurance business under the Mortgage
Insurance Programme of the Group is accounted for
on the annual accounting basis. Under the annual
accounting approach, the Group makes provisions
based on credible estimates of future income and
outgoings to determine the underwriting result for the
current accounting period. The underwriting result
includes any adjustments arising from the correction of
the previous estimates.

Gross premiums represent direct business written
through Authorized Institutions (Als) as defined in
accordance with the Banking Ordinance during an
accounting period. The gross premiums after deduction
of discounts and refunds, include the reinsurance
premiums to be paid to the approved reinsurers, the
risk premiums and servicing fees earned by the Group.
The net premiums are recognised as income on a
time-apportioned basis during the time the insurance
coverage is effective.

Unearned premiums represent that portion of net
premiums written which are estimated to relate to risks
and services subsequent to the end of each reporting
period.

Provisions are made for outstanding claims, claims
incurred but not reported and loss reserve at the end
of each reporting period. For risk-sharing business,
50% or 75% of the net risk premiums earned in a year
depending on the respective product is set aside as a
Contingency Reserve for a period of time in accordance
with relevant regulatory guidelines. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.
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Reinsurance contracts refer to contracts entered into
by the Group with reinsurers under which the Group
is compensated for losses on one or more insurance
contracts issued by the Group. Benefits to which
the Group is entitled under its reinsurance contracts
held are recognised as reinsurance assets. These
assets consist of claims recoverable from reinsurers
and receivables that are dependent on the expected
claims and benefits arising under the related reinsured
insurance contracts. Amounts recoverable from or
due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the
amounts associated with the reinsured insurance
contracts and in accordance with the terms of each
reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets are primarily
premiums for reinsurance contracts.

A reinsurance asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after
initial recognition of the reinsurance asset, that the
Group may not receive all amounts due to it under the
terms of the contract, and the impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurer can be
reliably measured.

commissions are recognised in the income statement
as incurred.

Other guarantee and insurance contracts

The Group provides financial guarantees for loan
facilities provided to eligible small and medium
enterprises (SMEs) and non-listed enterprises, in
return for a guarantee fee, insurance coverage on
reverse mortgage loans provided to elderly people and
on lump-sum loans provided to owners of properties
of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land
premium settlement, in return for an insurance
premium.

The Group will assess if its recognised liabilities are
adeqguate on each reporting date, using the current
estimates of future cash flows under these contracts.
If the assessment shows that the carrying amount of
its guarantee and insurance liabilities are inadequate
in the light of the estimated future cash flows, the
shortfall shall be recognised in the income statement.
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50% of the guarantee fee earned and 75% of the
insurance premium earned in a year is set aside
as a Contingency Reserve for a period of time in
accordance with relevant regulatory guidelines and as
considered by directors to be appropriate. Withdrawals
from the Contingency Reserve can be made to meet
excess claims at any time during the period. At the
end of the reporting period, the unutilised balance of
the Contingency Reserve can be released to retained
profits.

2.23.Dividend distribution

Dividend proposed or declared after the end of each
reporting period is disclosed as a liability in the period in
which the dividends are approved by shareholders.

Financial risk management

3.1. Strategy in using financial instruments

The major activities of the Group are (i) to purchase portfolios
of mortgages or loans; (i) to raise financing for its purchase
of assets through issuance of debt securities; (i) to provide
mortgage insurance cover to Als in respect of mortgage
loans originated by such Als and secured on residential
properties in Hong Kong; (iv) to provide financial guarantee
cover to Als in respect of loans originated by such Als to
SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong; (v) to provide
insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by such Als to elderly people; (vi) to provide
insurance cover to Als in respect of lump-sum loans to
owners of properties of subsidised housing schemes for
land premium settlement; and (vii) to operate a centralised
microfinance platform to support microfinance loans. By
their nature, the Group’s activities are principally related to
the use of financial instruments including cash, loans, debts
and derivatives.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks and those activities involve the analysis, evaluation,
acceptance and management of some degree of risk
or combination of risks. The Group manages the risks
in a prudent manner in sustaining the Group’s financial
performance.
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3.2.

The Corporate Risk Management Committee is set up at
corporate level to provide oversight of the enterprise-wide
risk matters including financial and non-financial risks.
The policies and limits for various risks are monitored and
reviewed regularly by various management committees,
including the Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
committee (ALCO), Transaction Approval Committee (TAC)
and Operational Risk Committee (ORC) which report to the
Corporate Risk Management Committee.

The Credit Committee oversees the credit policies and
standards for asset acquisition, mortgage insurance, SME
guarantee business and Microfinance Scheme. The ALCO
oversees the implementation of market risk management
and investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors. The TAC conducts an in-depth analysis of pricing
economics and associated risks for business transactions,
whilst taking into consideration the latest market conditions
and business strategies approved by the Board. The ORC is
responsible for ensuring that all business entities and line
functions maintain an effective operational risk and internal
control framework. The ORC is also responsible for providing
directions and resolving issues related to policies, controls
and management of operational issues referred to by line
functions, as well as ensuring prompt and appropriate
corrective action in response to audit findings related to
operational risks or internal controls. In addition, Internal
Audit Department is responsible for the independent review
of the internal control systems of the Company. The most
important types of risks are credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk which includes currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk.

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are its loan portfolio,
investment securities, cash and short-term funds. The credit
risk on liguid funds and investment securities is limited
because the credit ratings of the counterparties, mainly
sovereigns, quasi-sovereign agencies, banks and companies,
should meet the minimum requirement in accordance
with the investment guidelines approved by the Board of
Directors.
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The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its loan
portfolio, which is the risk that a loan borrower will be unable
to pay amounts in full when due. Allowance for impairment
is provided for losses that have been incurred at the end of
the reporting period.

Significant changes in the economy and local property
market could result in losses that are different from those
provided for at the end of the reporting period. The Group
therefore has a prudent policy for managing its exposure to
credit risk.

To maintain the quality of the asset portfolios, the Group
adheres to a four-pronged approach to (i) select Approved
Sellers with established criteria; (ii) adopt prudent asset
purchasing criteria; (iii) conduct effective due diligence
reviews; and (iv) ensure adequate protection for higher-risk
assets or transactions.

Credit risk exposures on mortgage loans of the Group
are spread over a large number of customers and
counterparties. The underlying collaterals on the Group’s
mortgage exposures are located in Hong Kong.

The Group undertakes ongoing credit review with special
attention paid to problem loans. Operation units will monitor
these loans and take recovery action such as establishing
relief plan with borrowers in order to maximise recoveries.
Loan impairment assessment is performed regularly and
impairment allowance is charged to income statement in
accordance with the guidelines approved by the Credit
Committee.

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group has implemented guidelines on the acceptability
of specific classes of collateral on credit risk mitigation,
which are subject to regular review.
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Loan portfolio

The principal collateral types for mortgage portfolio mainly
consist of properties and the deferred consideration (Note
25). For finance lease receivable, the collateral types
include taxi and public light bus licenses. Mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable are generally fully secured
by collateral. The current collateral value of properties is
determined with the use of public indices on a portfolio
basis. For other non-mortgage portfolio, no collateral is
generally sought.

Time deposits with banks and investment securities

Collaterals are generally not sought for time deposits with
banks as the exposures are considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties and short term maturity.
Investment securities are generally unsecured.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group enters into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association master agreement with all counterparties for
derivative transactions where each party will be able to settle
all outstanding amounts on a net basis in the event of default
of the other party. The Group also executed Credit Support
Annex (CSA) with its major counterparties in conjunction
with the master agreement. Under CSA, collateral is passed
between the parties to mitigate the counterparty risk
inherent in outstanding positions.

For financial instruments such as derivatives, exposures
are monitored against counterparty risk limits established
in accordance with the investment guidelines and credit
risk policy of the Group. These counterparty risk limits
are subject to regular review by the Credit Committee
on an annual basis. At any one time, the amount subject
to counterparty risk is limited to the current fair value of
instruments favourable to the Group (i.e. assets with positive
fair value), which in relation to derivatives is only a small
fraction of the contract, or notional values used to express
the volume of instruments outstanding. This counterparty
risk exposure is managed as part of the overall credit limits
with counterparties, together with potential exposures from
market movements.
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RRREEY) - HaBERMREE L Mortgage insurance contracts, other guarantee and
insurance contracts

B E35HE - The details are disclosed in Note 3.5.

SEENSFETEMAIE  IFEHK Settlement risk arises in any situation where a payment in

REX (S HALKERENI ® « IFH cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a

FREMENR o NWREAERTEM corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily

i HERATIAR S =A% settlement limits are established for each counterparty to

NESE B - NERERXSNFHIEE cover the aggregate of all settlement risk arising from the

BREERZ ° Group's market transactions on any single day.

@@ RITAIRFARE MK EAMEET (@ Maximum exposures to credit risk before taking
2 HE DN 98 15 i B9 Bk = 15 DT XL RS into account of collateral held or other credit
DHTETR - enhancements are analysed as follows:
REFAE R AT RS EENE The maximum exposures to credit risk of the financial
S5HEKESMESE - £RITHE assets of the Group are equal to their carrying
REEZHT - NEBR=HREHR amounts. The maximum exposures to credit risk of
IV I = 18 BT XL B 2 AT 40 the off-balance sheet exposures of the Group before
K taking into account of reinsurance arrangements are

as follows:
FT-F—REF
+=ZA=+—H
As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FHET FATT
HK$'000 HK$'000
MBI LR 520 Total risk-in-force

— RBRRL S — mortgage insurance business 21,100,756 16,839,822

— EBR AR — other guarantee and insurance
business 6,876,730 4,332,713

27,977,486 21,172,535
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Credit quality of the loan portfolio is analysed as

T : follows:
F-2—tF FTF—RF
t=A=+—-8 t=-A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FHET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R HR IR AR BB Neither past due nor impaired 7,652,233 9,302,729
BB ARRE Past due but not impaired 177,213 230,997
B RE Impaired 381 1,100
RS A Gross loan portfolio 7,829,827 9,534,826
BIFOR B % Allowance for loan impairment (386) (865)
7,829,441 9,533,961
T 2 R R R AR 0@ 5 IR AR Rk B Y The credit quality of loans that were neither past due

HRAAMERER (5%
AR M0 IR R St
GRIE

nor impaired as at the end of the reporting period can
be assessed by reference to the internal rating system

adopted by the Group.

F-=—tHF FTF—F
+=A=+—H +=A=+—H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
F#&x FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

KAl Grades:
123 1t03 7,648,227 9,294,014
4 4 = =
5 5 4,006 8,715
7,652,233 9,302,729
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Grades 1 to 3 include loans with either insignificant
credit risk or no recent past due history; and with
different levels of credit enhancements in addition to
the collateral held as security for mortgage portfolio
and finance lease receivable.

Grade 4 includes loans with recent past due history
and with different levels of credit enhancement in
addition to the collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Grade 5 includes loans with recent past due history
and with collateral held as security for mortgage
portfolio and finance lease receivable.

Loans past due but not impaired

The analysis below shows the gross amount of loans
that were past due but not impaired at the end of the
reporting period:

F_F—FXRF
+=—BA=+—~H
As at
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$'000
AR Past due:

=MNAHMAT Three months or less 176,723 229,008

INNAZATE Six months or less but
BEBI="A over three months 77 133
~NNAE Over six months 413 1,856
SEN Total 177,213 230,997
HAAfAmB A FE Of which fair value of collateral 2,409,667 2,348,154
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Individually impaired loans

Individually impaired loans of the Group before taking
into account the cash flows from collateral held
amounted to HK$381,000 (2016: HK$1,100,000).

The fair value of related collateral held for individually
impaired loans of the Group was nil (2016: nil).

Repossessed properties

The Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security. Repossessed properties are
sold as soon as practicable, with the proceeds used to
reduce the outstanding indebtedness and are classified
in the statement of financial position within “Other
assets”. If excess funds arise after repayment of the
outstanding indebtedness, they are distributed to the
beneficiaries of the assets under the applicable laws.

Cash and short-term funds

According to the investment guidelines approved
by the Board of Directors, the Group can only place
deposits with note-issuing banks or banks with a
certain minimum credit rating. As at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016, the minimum acceptable
short-term credit ratings are A-2 (Standard and Poor’s),
P-2 (Moody's) and F-2 (Fitch).
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According to the investment guidelines approved by
the Board of Directors, the Group can only invest in
debt securities with a certain minimum credit rating.
The proportion of investments according to rating
categories is monitored and reviewed by ALCO.

RIFSNEBIE TTNAG RO IF R IO
(IrEER BEREE) T
57 2 R B RAZ ¥ T B Al xS 5
SAUESFE AT  AMESH R &
REWR - MRFBIEHETTA
HTFREMR o

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities
by rating designation as at the end of the reporting
period, based on external credit agency’s ratings
(Standard and Poor's, Moody's and Fitch). In the
absence of issue-specific ratings, the ratings for the
issuers are reported.

A &I 3 BEZEMIES
Available-for-sale  Held-to-maturity E#
securities securities Total
F-E-t5+=-A=+-H THET FHET THET
As at 31 December 2017 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/A3a AAA/A3a 56,861 858,547 915,408
AA- £ AA+/AG3 £ Aa1 AA- 10 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 3,468,224 3,147,190 6,615,414
A- ZAHAIEAT A-10 A+/A310 A1 1,955,827 6,342,097 8,297,924
B Total 5,480,912 10,347,834 15,828,746
At EIEH BEREETIA
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity B
securities securities Total
F-E-F+-A=1+-H TAL TEL THL
As at 31 December 2016 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AAA/A3a AAA/A3a 73,661 1,432,431 1,506,092
AA- £ AA+/AG3 £ AaT AA- 10 AA+/Aa3 10 Aa1 3,273,891 6,456,545 9,730,436
A- ZAHAIEAT A- 10 A+/A310 A1 1,249,639 2,042,689 3,292,328
BEm Total 4,597,191 9,931,665 14,528,856
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3.3. Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate,
currency and equity products, all of which are exposed to
general and specific market movements and changes in the
level of volatility of market rates or prices such as interest
rates, credit spreads, foreign exchange rates and equity
prices. The Group's exposures to market risk primarily arise
from the interest rate management of the entity’s financial
instruments of different repricing characteristics, or from the
net exposure of the foreign currency denominated financial
instruments. The Group hedges a major proportion of its
existing interest rate risk of the fixed-rate bond issuance
using fair value hedges in the form of interest rate swaps
by swapping into floating-rate funding to better match the
floating-rate assets. The Group also hedges the net exposure
of the foreign-currency denominated debts issued by the use
of cross-currency swaps as fair value hedges and economic
hedges respectively.

The management of market risk is principally undertaken
by the Treasury Department using risk limits approved
by the Board of Directors. Strategies on interest rate
risk management, financing, hedging, investments are
formulated by ALCO. Regular meetings are held to review
the latest conditions in the financial markets and the asset-
liability portfolio mix. The Treasury Department is responsible
for monitoring financial market movements and executing
transactions in the cash, derivatives, debt and investment
markets in accordance with the strategies laid down by
ALCO. The middle office monitors the compliance of risk
limits and performs stress tests to assess the potential size
of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The results
of the stress tests are reviewed by ALCO.
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A principal part of the interest rate risk management is to
monitor the sensitivity of projected net interest income
under different interest rate scenarios and to mitigate the
negative impact through hedging operations. A 20 basis
points parallel downward shift of the interest rate curve as
at 31 December 2017 would increase the future net interest
income for the next twelve months by around HK$2 million
(2016: HK$6 million) and decrease by around HK$2 million
(2016: HK$6 million) for a similar upward parallel shift.

As at 31 December 2017, if interest rates at that date had
experienced a 20 basis points parallel shift downwards,
profit for the year would have been higher by around
HK$0.2 million (2016: lower by less than HK$0.1 million) and
the fair value reserve would have been higher by around
HK$3 million (2016: HK$6 million) as at 31 December 2017.
If interest rates had experienced a 20 basis points parallel
shift upwards, profit for the year would have been lower
by around HK$0.3 million (2016: higher by less than HK$0.1
million) and the fair value reserve would have been lower by
around HK$3 million (2016: HK$6 million).

As at 31 December 2017, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against the US dollars, profit for the
year would have been around HK$17 million higher (2016:
HK$21 million). Conversely, if the Hong Kong dollars had
strengthened by 100 price interest points against the US
dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$17
million lower (2016: HK$21 million).

As at 31 December 2017, with all other variables held
constant, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened by 100
price interest points against foreign currencies other than
US dollars, profit for the year would have been around HK$2
million higher (2016: HK$4 million). Conversely, if the Hong
Kong dollars had strengthened by 100 price interest points
against foreign currencies other than US dollars, profit for
the year would have been around HK$2 million lower (2016:
HK$4 million).
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As at 31 December 2017, with all other variables held
constant, if the price of exchange-traded funds and real
estate investment trusts had decreased by 1%, the fair value
reserve would have been around HK$17 million lower (2016:
HK$24 million). Conversely, if the price of exchange-traded
funds and real estate investment trusts had increased by 1%,
the fair value reserve would have been around HK$17 million
higher (2016: HK$24 million).

The increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, exchange rates and equity prices for a 12-month
period.

(@) Foreign currency exposure

The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations
in the prevailing foreign currency exchange rate on
its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets
allowable currencies for investment purposes. The
ALCO sets limits on the currency exposure that may be
undertaken, which is monitored daily. At funding side,
the multi-currency feature of the MTN programme
enables the Group to issue notes in major currencies,
including US dollars, renminbi, Singapore dollars,
British pounds, Australian dollars, euro and Japanese
yen. All foreign currency-denominated debts are fully
hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
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The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange rate risk. Included in the
tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by currency.

H At 5pifi
BT %7 Other foreign BH
HKD usD Total
TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

currencies
Tax
HK$'000

F-E-t%+-A=1—H Asat31December 2017

B Assets
NeReire Cash and short-term funds 23,703,585 1,371,906 202,699 25,278,190
R B ROLFR Interest and remittance receivables 215,386 85,954 42,638 343,978
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 182,820 4,617 146,290 333,727
RHEA AT Loan portfolio, net 7,829,441 - - 7,829,441
AR Investment securities:

— S — available-for-sale 2,859,419 4,279,243 - 7,138,662

e — held-to-maturity 2,487,871 7,775,932 84,031 10,347,834
AN - e REMAS  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 37,000 30,054 100 67,154

Ehaye Fixed assets 34,329 - - 34,329
1R 7= Deferred tax assets 295 - - 295
BREAF Reinsurance assets 164,601 - - 164,601
RERE Total assets 37,514,747 13,547,706 475,758 51,538,211
il Liabilities
RIS Interest payable 162,124 3,592 26,417 192,133
RIS HEIR - M R Accounts payable, accrued

Hitf ik expenses and other liabilities 5,098,896 264,367 - 5,363,263
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 68,163 - 50,901 119,064
LEHIA R Current tax liabilities 116,288 - - 116,288
RER R Insurance liabilities 1,130,150 - - 1,130,150
BRITREIES Debt securities issued 27,424,606 2,048,751%  5367,349* 34,840,706
AREH Total liabilities 34,000,227 2,316,710 5,444,667 41,761,604
HO2H Net position 3,514,520 11,230,996 (4,968,909) 9,776,607
RERREINEE WS Off-balance sheet net notional

position * (7,302,494) 2,046,666 5,281,689 25,861
! [RFEABRNEE LS C] & "Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the

* %

BIMITEESRTA(ZER
VARR AR S ] T 5 R B X
B ) B9 R LIS E N FER
E# °

X RET

BB 261278 T REE T
FiEF ~ 17{ZB TR TTRSS
% R 1012 T e AR T 7
Sz - H2BRAET

difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

* Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
Y Amounts included debt securities issued in British pounds of

HK$2.6 billion, Australian dollars of HK$1.7 billion and renminbi
of HK$1 billion, fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
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FZE-AETZA=F—H Asat31December 2016

I
%L Other foreign B

) currencies Total
THL THL THL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R ASSEts
NekEHRe Cash and short-term funds 18,380,846 5431538 3,287 23,815,671
R 2 ROCFR Interest and remittance receivables 225,749 85,349 48311 359,409
fTELRIE Derivative financial instruments 245,097 - - 245,097
RRAR A4 Loan portfolio, net 9,533,961 - - 9,533,961
AR Investment securities:

—AfHE — avallable-for-sale 2,553,300 4424377 - 6,971,677

—HEZRIH — held-to-maturity 3,556,967 5,962,873 411,825 9,931,665
WA - e REMA  Prepayments, deposits and

other assets 51,665 308,052 92 359,809

Eh e Fixed assets 18,527 - - 18,527
BRR A Reinsurance assets 146,027 - - 146,027
RERE Total assets 34,712,139 16,212,189 463515 51,387,843
ffi Liahilties
RS2 Interest payable 187,171 319 30,063 218,153
RIIEIR » NAFF R Accounts payable, accrued

Hhto i b7 expenses and other liabilities 5,221,640 6,753 - 5,228,393
fTESBIE Derivative financial instruments 1,702,859 - - 1,702,859
L HBIN R Current tax liabilities 94,745 = - 94,745
BRI 5 Deferred tax liabilities 16,660 - - 16,660
RIEH G Insurance liabilities 1,048,550 = = 1,048,550
BRI S Debt securities issued 28,604,607 379,982* 5,248 878** 34,233 467
HREH Total liabilities 36,876,832 387,054 5,278,941 42,542,827
RO Net position (2,164,693) 15,825,135 (4,815,426) 8,845,016
REffikiNeS Wse:  Off-balance sheet net notional

position * (7.218,109) 379,904 5,197,487 (1,640,718)

# [R=AFRRINE R LT
BIMITEERTIA(EZER

VAR AN 62 ] T 5%

REHIR

) MBEXETSE A FEN

&

* SEXHRETT

b BE B E4ZE T H) R T
S M BIZBTTH AR fi
Kk - H2BXHAET

* %

"Off-balance sheet net notional position” represents the
difference between the notional amounts of foreign currency
derivative financial instruments, which are principally used to
reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements and their
fair values.

Fully hedged into Hong Kong dollars.
Amounts included debt securities issued in Australian dollars of

HK$4.4 billion and renminbi of HK$0.8 billion, fully hedged into
Hong Kong dollars.
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(b)
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Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market
interest rates on both its fair value and cash flow risks.
Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event
that unexpected movements arise. The ALCO sets
limits on the level of interest rate mismatch that may
be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to
interest rate risks. Included in the tables are the assets
and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the
earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates. The
carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments,
which are principally used to reduce the Group's
exposure to interest rate movements, are included
under the heading “Non-interest bearing”.
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F-E-tE+ZB=1-H Asat31December 2017

L

Upto
1 month
TE%
HK$'000

—MANE
RO
Over

1 month to
3 months
TEn
HK$'000

SARRE -l
2-F ELf
Over Over
Imonths  1yearto
to 1 year 5 years
TET THR
HK$'000 HK$'000

BENE
Over

5 years
TET
HK$'000

Fits
Non-interest
bearing
THR
HK$'000

A8
Total
TER
HK$'000

R’ Assets
e REHAE Cash and short-term funds 10,914,798 10,289,000 3,968,000 - - 106,392 25,278,190
NRFERR Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 343,978 343978
fTESETA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 333,721 333,721
REES A Loan portfolio, net 7,771,557 26,167 10,666 14,835 216 - 7,829,441
R Investment securities:

—miHE — available-for-sale 1,137,784 3,044,884 715,015 583,229 - 1,657,750 7,138,662

e — held-to-maturity 117,283 1,008,538 464,018 4,802,050 3,955,975 - 10,347,834
FF0R - REREMAS  Prepayments, deposits

and other assets 29,315 - - - - 37,839 67,154

EE A~ Fixed assets = = = - - 34,329 34,329
BREHIA Deferred tax assets - - - - - 295 295
BRRA® ReinsLirance assets - - - - - 164,601 164,601
AR Total assets 19,976,707 14,368,589 5,157,699 5,400,114 3,956,191 2,678911 51,538,211
Ak Liabilities
ufFE Interest payable - - - - - 192,133 192,133
RA®R - BAFER Accounts payable, accrued expenses

Eesfz and other liabilities 5,208,780 - - - - 154,483 5,363,263
fTEe@Ia Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 119,064 119,064
el Current tax iabilies - - - - - 116,288 116,288
RREAR Instrance liabilities - - - - - 1,130,150 1,130,150
BRTfR%IH Delt securities issued 9,410,453 9,501,755 4,750,551 7,564,434 3,613,513 - 34,840,706
ARER Total liabilties 14,619,233 9,501,755 4,750,551 7564434 3613513 1,712,118 41,761,604
HS RO S5 Total interest sensitivity gap* 5,357,474 4,866,834 407,148 (2,164,320) 342,678
FEFTETA Interest rate derivatives

(Beaimsien) (notional amounts of net position) (345,007)  (2,155,968) 360,132 790986 1,375,718

* RITASTESRITANBE £1T & before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

RFIUEHEE LR o on the debt securities issued.
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—MAm Over Over RENE T8,
Upto  1monthto 3months 1yearto Over  Non-interest B8

g 3months to1year 5years 5Yyears bearing Total
ThL Tin ThT T ThT T ThTL
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 00 HKS'000

F-ENET-F=1-H Asat31December 2016

N Assets
NeREHAE Cash and short-term funds 5,067,139 12916172 5,762,665 - - 69,695 23815671
RSFERR Interest and remittance receivables - - - - - 359,409 359,409
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 245,097 245,097
REES T Loan portfolio, net 9,469,814 33,185 8142 22,588 232 - 9,533,961
R Investment securities:

—m§HE — avalable-for-sale - 1,445,290 2,016,905 1,13499% - 2,380,486 6,971,617

—HEEIS — held-to-maturity 155,806 299,968 2284802 4,063715 3121374 - 9,931,665
3R - ke REMSAT  Prepayments, deposits

and other assets 307,955 - - - - 51,854 359,809

EER= Fived assets - - - - - 18527 18527
BRERT ReinsLirance assets - - - - = 106,007 146,027
RERH Total assets 15,000,714 14,694,615 10,072,514 5221299 3,127,606 3,271,095 51,387,843
il Liahiliies
RAHE Interest payable - - - - - 218,153 218,153
R TR R Accounts payable, accrued expenses

Az and other liabilties 5,095,3% - - - - 133,037 5228393
fTEeBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 1,702,859 1,702859
EL Current tax igbiliies - - - - - 94,745 94,765
BERAR R Deferred tax liabilities - - - - - 16,660 16,660
RREAR Instrance liabilities - - - - - 1,048,550 1,048,550
BRIGEIES Debt sectrities issued 5,769,091 8,857,902 8460300 7660354 3481820 - 23347
ARER Total liabilties 10,864,447 8,857,902 8,464,300 7,660,354 3,481,820 3,214,004 42542821
HegRERDSH* Total interest sensitivity gap* 4,136,267 583,713 1608214 (2439,055) (354,214)
EG LA Interest rate derivatives

(Beaiinaien) (notional amounts of net position) (7735888 (1233115%) 8453000 7,582,576 2.390,750

* AFAPTEEBRTANE &7 * before the repricing effect of derivative financial instruments

ASIEHEE SR on the debt securities issued.
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3.4. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk of the Group not being
able to repay its payment obligations or to fund committed
purchases of loans. Liquidity risk is managed by monitoring
the actual inflows and outflows of funds on a daily basis and
projecting longer-term inflows and outflows of funds across a
full maturity spectrum. The Group has established diversified
funding sources to support the growth of its business and
the maintenance of a balanced portfolio of liabilities. Sources
of liquidity are regularly reviewed by ALCO.

@)

Undiscounted cash flows analysis

The tables below present cash flows payable by
the Group under non-derivative financial liabilities,
derivative financial liabilities that will be settled on a
net basis and derivative financial instruments that will
be settled on gross basis by remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the tables are the projected
contractual undiscounted cash flows including future
interest payments on the basis of their earliest possible
contractual maturity. The Group’s derivatives include
interest rate swaps that will be settled on net basis;
and cross currency swaps that will be settled on gross
basis.
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iy FESTETEASRH ()  Non-derivative cash outflows

-MABE  =ARBE -ENE
2B 2-F ZIE
-MAA Over Over over RENE

Upto 1monthto  3months 1year to Over Jak i
1 month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
TiEx TiEn TR TiEx TiEn TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-E-tE+=A=t-F Asat31December 2017
il Liabilities
B RAIfREIEH Debt securities issued (4926,521)  (2,155,632) (12,005,961) (13,525,066)  (4,532,062) (37,145,242)

—Ep Lt
j BRE
—MAW Over Over RENE

Upto  Tmonthto 3months 1yearto QOver
1 month 3months to1year 5years 5years

AT T TR AT TR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FIZ-~ETZA=T—H Asat31December 2016

it Liabilities
ERTTRSIES Debt securities issued (2580695)  (7867440)  (9952782) (11,668,629  (4400077)  (36,469,623)
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iy PTEIEISRASCR (i) Derivative cash inflows/(outflows)
)

-MEME  EABME —ENE
Z=AB B-F gt
-MAR Oover Over Over RENE

Upto  1monthto 3 months 1 year to Over Jk.1
1month 3 months to 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
T TiEn T TET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-Z-t£+=-A=1t-H Asat31December 2017

BTFIREEER Derivative financial
fESBIL: instrument settled:
— ARk —on et basis 985 (11,490) 35% (13181 (30558)  (22708)
—BHEE — 0N gross hasis
o=y Total outflow (172,843)  (1,304,591)  (3,649,074) (993,568)  (1,540,185)  (7,660,261)
MARH Total inflow 172,508 1,323,759 3,790,465 1,102,945 1,532,460 7,922,137

650 7,678 172,921 96,196 (38,283) 239,168

—Ep b
BhE
—MNAA Over Over

Upto  Tmonthto 3months 1yearto
1 month 3months to 1year 5years

BT T Tt AL ; BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-Z-AE+-AZt—H  Asat31December 2016

BTIEELER Derivative financial
ITESRTIA: instrument settled:
—AEE —onnet basis (3.207) (8013 38,676 (29,301) (54,991) (57,336)
—BHEE — 0N gross hasis
piifetl Total outflow G192 (G05173) QIG5 O9n) (I35 (7,50342))
MALH Total inflow 556,450 3,669,019 33,581 712,533 1,022,219 5993802

(18.684)  (1,384,167) 50,606 (28,365) (186347)  (1,566957)

EERBISARAT —=—t&8F4% 207



SREMEIREME Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) ZHHB DT (b)  Maturity analysis
TEREREERARESHEH The table below analyses the assets and liabilities into
AFRERE - DT BXRE~ R relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
AREIEAE R © period at the end of the reporting period to the

contractual maturity date.

—MARE EAAME -FHE
2=/ E-F Z5E
WHES -1MAR Over Over over HEENE

Repayable Upto 1monthto 3months 1yearto Over FRE BE
ondemand  1month 3 months to1year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
TER TER TER TER TER TERT TERT TERL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

F-2-t£+-A=+-H Asat31December 2017

i Assets

NeREHRE Cash and short-term funds 93,799 10,927,391 10,289,000 3,968,000 - - - 25,278,190

AR Loan portfolio 3,426 61,580 132,817 543,114 2,466,304 4,621,873 713 7,829,827

EHRR Investment securities

— e — avallable-for-sale - 551,833 291,063 819,816 3,818,200 - 1,657,750 7,138,662

—REEHH — held-to-maturity - 117,253 - 464018 5,810,588 3,955,975 - 10,347,834

BRRAF Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 164,601 164,601
97,225 11,658,057 10,712,880 5,794,948 12,095,092 8,577,848 1,823,064 50,759,114

il Liabilities

RIS Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1,130,150 1,130,150

BATREEH Debt securities issued - 4,871,829 2,060,057 11,647,747 12,647,560 3,613,513 - 34,840,706

- 4871829 2,060,057 11,647,747 12,647,560 3,613,513 1,130,150 35,970,856

s —&E)F
M s ERF
MasE  —MAW QOver QOver QOver

Repayable Upto Tmonthto  3months  1Tyearto TR

on demand Tmonth ~ 3months  t01year 5years Undated
BT TEL ThL TAT ThT : TAT FHEL
HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

FZZ-"E+ZR=1—8 Asat31December 2016

R Assets
NekEHRE Cash and short-term funds 58444 5078390 12916172 5,762,665 - - - 23815671
AR Loan portfolio 2,904 71,198 153,904 628962 2895570 5,780,807 1481 9,534,826
IEFRA Investment securiies
—AfHE — avallable-for-sale = = 46526 1,535,103 3015562 - 238048 6977671
—HBEHES — held-to-maturity - 155,806 299968 2284802 4063715 3127374 - 9,931,665
BRRAF Reinsurance assets - - - - - - 146027 146,027
61348 5305394 13416570 10211,532 9974847 8908181 2,527,994 50,405,866
il Liabilities
REH 5 Insurance liabilities - - - - - - 1048550 1,048,550
BARSIES Debt securities issued - 2523337 7758031 9614218 10,856,061 3,481,820 - 34233467

- 208337 7758031 9614218 10856061 3481820 1048550 35282017
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3.5.

Apart from the above, interest and remittance
receivables, prepayments and other assets, interest
payable, accounts payable, accrued expenses and
current tax liabilities are expected to be recovered or
settled within twelve months from the reporting date.
Other assets and liabilities included in the consolidated
statement of financial position are expected to be
recovered or settled in a period more than twelve
months after the reporting date.

In addition, the Exchange Fund has committed to
providing the Group with a HK$30 billion revolving
credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, which
enables the Group to maintain smooth operation under
exceptional circumstances, so that it can better fulfil its
mandate to promote banking and financial stability in
Hong Kong.

Insurance risk

The main insurance business of the Group is the mortgage
insurance which provides cover to the Als for first credit
losses of up to 40% of the property value of a residential
mortgage loan in Hong Kong with loan-to-value ratio 90% or
below at origination, or other thresholds as specified from
time to time. The Group also provides financial guarantee
cover to Als up to 50% — 70% of the banking facilities
granted to SMEs and non-listed enterprises in Hong Kong,
insurance cover to Als in respect of reverse mortgage loans
originated by such Als and secured on residential properties,
and in respect of lump-sum loans advanced by such Als
to owners of properties of subsidised housing schemes
primarily for land premium settlement and secured on these
properties.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is
that the actual claims exceed the carrying amount of the
insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency
or severity of claims are greater than estimated. Insurance
events are random and the actual number and amount of
claims and benefits will vary from year to year from the
estimate established using statistical techniques.
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Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio. The Group
has developed a business strategy to diversify the type
of insurance risks accepted and within each of the key
categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks
to reduce the variability of the expected outcome.

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors. The most significant are a downturn of the
economy, a slump in the local property market and a low
mortality rate of borrowers. Economic downturn, which may
cause a rise in defaulted payment, affects the frequency of
claims and collateral value. A drop in property prices, where
the collateral value falls below the outstanding balance
of the mortgage loan, will increase the severity of claims.
Low mortality rate of reverse mortgage borrowers means
longer payout period and larger loan balance will be over
time. This will affect the frequency and severity of claims as
there is a risk of the property value insufficient to cover the
outstanding loan balance in the future.

The Group manages these risks by adopting a set of prudent
insurance underwriting eligibility criteria. To ensure sufficient
provision is set aside for meeting future claim payments,
the Group calculates technical reserves on prudent liability
valuation assumptions and the method prescribed in the
regulatory guidelines. The Group also takes out quota-
share reinsurance from its approved mortgage reinsurers
in an effort to limit its risk exposure under the mortgage
insurance business. The Group conducts comprehensive
assessment including the financial strength and credit
ratings of the mortgage reinsurers in accordance with the
approved selection framework set by the Credit Committee.
The approved mortgage reinsurers are subject to periodic
reviews. For financial guarantee cover provided to Als, the
Group relies on the lenders’ prudent credit assessment on
the borrowers to mitigate default risk and any loss in the loan
facility will be shared proportionately between the Group
and the lender on a pari passu basis to minimise moral
hazards. The mortality assumptions of reverse mortgages
are also reviewed on a regular basis, to assess the risk of
larger deviation between the actual and expected operating
results.
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As at 31 December 2017, if combined ratio had increased by
1%, profit for the year would have been HK$3 million (2016:
HK$3 million) lower. If combined ratio had decreased by 1%,
profit for the year would have been HK$3 million (2016: HK$3
million) higher.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

(@) Fair value estimation

The following table shows financial instruments
recognised at fair value, by valuation method. The
different levels of fair value hierarchy have been
defined as follows:

Quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1);

Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived
from prices) (Level 2); and

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
(Level 3).

F-E-t5+-A=1+-H F-5—7"E+-A=1-H
As at 31 December 2017 As at 31 December 2016
2-F #-F BH F—F 2R B
Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
TEL THT TEL Tin BT Tix
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
"= Assets
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments - 333,727 333,727 - 245,097 245,097
HETS Available-for-sale securities
— REIE — Debt securities 5,480,912 - 5480912 3,947,856 649,335 4,597,191
—Hfhil % — Other securities 1,657,750 - 1,657,750 2,380,486 - 2,380,486
7,138,662 333,727 7,472,389 6,328,342 894,432 1,222,774
ffz Liabilities
fTELRIE Derivative financial instruments - 119,064 119,064 - 1,702,859 1,702,859
ThsAREE Debt securities issued
A YNTIEY designated as at fair value
TTARER through profit or 10ss upon
EATREIS initial recognition - 141,946 141,946 - 137,385 137,385
- 261,010 261,010 - 1,840,244 1,840,244
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No financial instrument was measured at fair value
using a valuation technigue not supported by
observable market data (Level 3) as at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016.

There was no transfer between Levels 1 and 2 during
the year.

(i)

(if)
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Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the reporting date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. If an asset or a liability
measured at fair value has a bid price and an
ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread
that is most representative of fair value in the
circumstances shall be used to measure fair
value. These instruments are included in Level 1.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation technigues. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible
on entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
isincluded in Level 3.
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Level 2 derivatives comprise interest rate swaps
and currency swaps. These derivatives are fair
valued using forward interest rates and forward
exchange rates, if applicable, from observable
yield curves.

Level 2 debt securities are fair valued using
quoted market prices in less active markets, or if
not available, a discounted cash flow approach,
which discounts the contractual cash flows using
discount rates derived from observable market
prices of other quoted debt instruments of the
counterparties.

(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities not
measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments not presented on the Group's statement of
financial position at their fair values are not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016 except for the following
financial instruments, for which their carrying amounts
and fair values and the level of fair value hierarchy are
disclosed below:

FoE8-tEtZR=1-A TZF- A=1-H
As at 31 December 2017 Asat 31 December 2016

KA il

Carrying A £-R %R Camying A £k 2R
amount Fair value Level 1 Level 2 amount Fair value Level1 Level2

T Tén T#n T#n ThL ThL ThT TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

SHAF Financial assets
EHER Investment securities
—HEEHS — held-to-maturity 10,347,834 10,561,660 10,263,983 297,677 9,931,665 10,129,040 9.829,061 2999719
SRAR Financial liabilities
ERRE TS Debt securities issued 34,698,760 34,830,933 - 34,830,933 34,09%,082 34,169,149 - 34,169,149
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(iii)

(iv)
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The following methods and significant assumptions
have been used to estimate the fair values of financial
instruments:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Cash and short-term funds

Cash and short-term funds include bank
deposits. The fair value of floating-rate deposits is
the carrying amount. The estimated fair value of
fixed-rate deposits, which are normally less than
6 months, is based on discounted cash flows
using prevailing money-market interest rates
for debts with similar credit risk and remaining
maturity. Therefore, the fair value of the deposits
is approximately equal to their carrying value.

Loan portfolio, net

Loan portfolio is stated net of impairment
allowance. An insignificant portion of loan
portfolio bears interest at fixed rate. Therefore,
the carrying value of loan portfolio is a
reasonable estimate of the fair value.

Investment securities — held-to-maturity

Fair value for held-to-maturity assets is based
on market prices or broker/dealer price
quotations, which are the clean prices. Where
this information is not available, fair value has
been estimated using quoted market prices for
securities with similar credit, maturity and yield
characteristics.

Other assets

These mainly represent cash collateral received
under CSA with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.
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(v)  Debt securities issued

The aggregate fair values are calculated based on
quoted market prices, which are the clean prices.
For those notes where quoted market prices are
not available, a discounted cash flow model is
used based on a current yield curve appropriate
for the remaining term to maturity.

(vi)  Other liabilities

These mainly represent the deferred
consideration used for credit enhancement
on the mortgage loans purchased from
the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (Government) in
December 2003 and January 2004 with the fair
value approximating the carrying amount.

(vii) Interest and remittance receivables and interest
payable

Accrued interest is recognised separately with
the fair value approximating the carrying amount
as it is expected to be recovered or settled
within twelve months from the reporting date.
Remittance receivables are expected to be
recovered within one month from the reporting
date with the fair value approximating the
carrying amount.

3.7. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a
broader concept than the equity on the face of the statement
of financial position, are:

o To comply with the capital requirements set by the
Financial Secretary of the Government (Financial
Secretary);

o To safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for

shareholders;

o To support the Group's stability and growth;
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To allocate capital in an efficient and risk based
approach to optimise risk adjusted return to the
shareholders; and

To maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of its business.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are
monitored daily by the Group’s management in accordance
with the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio (Guidelines)
issued by the Financial Secretary, by reference largely
to Basel Il risk-based capital adequacy framework. The
minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) stipulated in the
Guidelines is 8%.

The Chief Executive Officer is required to submit a report
to the Board of Directors on a quarterly basis by reference
to the Guidelines issued by the Financial Secretary. If the
CAR drops to the threshold level of 14%, the Chief Executive
Officer will alert the Executive Directors. If the CAR falls to
12% or below, the Board of Directors will be informed and
appropriate remedial actions will be taken. During the year,
the Group complied with all of the capital requirement set
out in the Guidelines by the Financial Secretary.

The table below summarises the composition of capital base
and the CAR of the Group as at the end of the reporting
period.

2017 2016

FHBxT FETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

k&N Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000

IREB A Retained profits 5,889,254 5,023,307

MBS & Contingency reserve 1,679,837 1,739,389

i Other reserve 93,382 44,782
LAUEA R E T RURE Allowance for loan impairment under

F{E2 % & collective assessment 386 865

R Deductions (183,796) (127,723)

BARERL B AR Total capital base 9,479,063 8,630,620

BARTE B E Capital Adequacy Ratio 21.0% 21.3%
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3.8. Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The disclosures set out in the tables below pertain to
financial assets and financial liabilities that are not offset in
the Group'’s consolidated statement of financial position but
are subject to enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements that cover similar financial instruments.
The disclosures enable the understanding of both the gross
and net amounts, as well as provide additional information
on how such credit risk is mitigated.

Fo3-tEtzAzt-8
As at 31 December 2017

BXEFREGENERAR
piklex &
Related amount
not set off in
the consolidated statement

of financial position*

2t
HEHAR
Derivative Cash
financial  collateral
instruments paid
TET TEn
HK$'000 HK$'000

frEsMIA

Carrying

amounts

onthe

consolidated

A4 statementof

Net financial

amount’ position
TET
HK$'000

T2+ -H=t+-H
Asat 31 December 2016

; ‘
Related amount
not set offin
the consolidated statement
of financial position®

BT

£ UeHER
erivative Cash A8
financial Collateral Net
instruments paid amount’
T TiEn T
HKS'000 HKS'000

SHAF Financial assets
i Golikisea Positve fair values for
TAATH derivative financia
instruments 333,727 (79,634) (207,029) 47,064 245097 (228,439) - 16,658
SHAR Financial liabilities
bk Negative fair values for
TANTE derivative financial
instruments 119,064 (79,634) (29,315) 10,115 1702859 (228439) (307,955) 1,166,465
2 [HEXBHRELEE M S KRR H # Amounts under “Related amount not set off in the consolidated
e | B P EE T H B AT statement of financial position” represent the amounts of financial
WBEERIFHTARN SRR liabilities/assets position that are subject to netting arrangements or
B/ REERH similar agreements including CSA.
i BRI B B L HE SR LT e Net amount represents financial assets/liabilities that are subject

ARMEMA T R - EfERE
AR SN FEY - HIDREHEERN
SRAGR AR SARERAEX 4 o

to netting arrangements or similar agreements but the Group's
counterparty does not have equivalent financial liabilities/assets
position with the Group to offset upon default.
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Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

4.1.

Impairment allowances on loan portfolio

The Group reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment
on a regular basis. In determining whether an impairment
loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Group
makes judgements as to whether there is any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans
before the decrease can be identified with an individual
loan in that portfolio. This evidence may include observable
data indicating that there has been an adverse change in
the payment status of borrowers in a group or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in
the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

The carrying amount of loan portfolio as at 31 December
2017 is disclosed in Note 19.
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4.2. Provision for outstanding claims on insurance and
guarantee portfolios

The Group reviews its insurance and guarantee portfolios
to assess provision for outstanding claims, including claims
of which the amounts have not been determined and
claims arising out of incidents that have not been notified
to the insurer, known as “Incurred But Not Reported” and
related expenses for settling such claims. In determining
the provision for outstanding claims, the Group makes
judgement and assumptions including but not limited to
the loss severity rate applied, the economic climate and
the local property market in making estimation of the
payments which the Group is required to make in fulfilling
its obligations under the insurance and guarantee contracts.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating the
ultimate claim amount are reviewed regularly.

The carrying amount of insurance liabilities as at 31
December 2017 is disclosed in Note 26.

Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in mortgage related businesses
in Hong Kong. Other activities such as debt issuance to fund the
mortgage purchase and investment to reinvest the surplus funds
from mortgage receipt are considered ancillary to mortgage
business. The Group is also organised in such a way that resource
allocation and performance measurement are based on the Group
as a whole in a single segment for mortgage related businesses.
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6. FEUWAN 6. Interestincome
2017 2016
F#&x T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS Loan portfolio 165,467 184,269
NekEHRES Cash and short-term funds 320,395 233,572
IFAFIR R Investment securities 416,471 398,473
902,333 816,314
7. FEXH 7. Interest expense
2016
FHIT
HK$'000
RITEFRRE KITESIESH Bank loans and debt securities issued 349,328 297,624
EHh Others 45,427 28,048
394,755 325,672
AEERELZHBIEIMZETL(ZF—X Included within interest expenses are HK$394 million (2016:
& 324127 70) KB H A AR FEZMIT HK$324 million) for financial liabilities that are not at fair
ARz SRR © value through profit or loss.
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8.

ZinRERBERLSHWKEKR 8.

guarantee business

2017

FHERT
HK$'000

Revenue account for mortgage insurance and

2016
TAT
HK$'000

e Gross premiums written
(B3 (a) R SE 26(a)) (Note (a) and Note 26(a)) 493,459 436,577
BIRRARZE (F)E 26(a)) Reinsurance premiums (Note 26(a)) (76,383) (69,015)
IRES 78 340 (P )E 26(a)) Net premiums written (Note 26(a)) 417,076 367,562
RIFHIR 2 1L 0250 Increase in unearned premiums, net (64,662) (52,558)
BB HAR 22840 (KE 26(a)) Net premiums earned (Note 26(a)) 352,414 315,004
B R 8E0 (B)E 26(0)) Net claims incurred (Note 26(b)) (641) (4,066)
% REEHRE 0 Net premiums earned after provisions 351,773 310,938
B Commission expenses (166,252) (139,116)
BRE A TEEHAS S E Reinsurers’ share of commission expenses 25,798 22,157
BeZ 2 Net commission expenses (140,454) (116,959)
HBREEREF SN Net premiums earned before
BHHIRER 2N management expenses 211,319 193,979
B (KE b)) Management expenses (Note (b)) (62,177) (73,416)
AR Underwriting gains 149,142 120,563
B - Notes:
(@) ERBEEREBRBERRLS - NEBHERE @) Gross premiums were mainly derived from mortgage insurance cover on

RERBITROREE - /B RIEEmR mortgage loans with a small portion of premiums written from mortgage

WEMIBRE  SRRXANAHERITIEN insurance cover on reverse mortgage loans, guarantee fees written from

b E Mg EZ A T N8 —E L FTRAR guarantee business on loans to SMEs and non-listed enterprises and

o premiums written from mortgage insurance cover on lump-sum loans to
owners of properties of subsidised housing schemes primarily for land
premium settlement.

(b) EBEFZAMEI0REHH—3D - (b) Management expenses formed part of the operating expenses in Note 10.
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9. HBUA Other income
2017 2016
F#&x T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
IRE N A M TR Early prepayment fees and late charges 466 550
JLHZEE Exchange difference 171,147 (20,681)
SRMITARNTE Net change in fair value of
)3 E0 financial instruments (1,057) (7,640)
AN E FIRARRE Dividend income from available-for-sale
W A listed investments 82,878 83,440
SRR M S Net gains on disposal of investments
(FfF5£12) (Note 12) 163,538 159,841
HAth Others (2,488) (2,406)
414,484 213,104

CHTEARNFEEDNESE TUATSIAEL
M:OEENAFEN AR R TAAF
B zE16762BT(ZE—RF: 5H
9,500 5% TT) BRI AFESHR16.76
ZHBTE(ZF— N : 8,600 F T dezs)
R THFERBN ARSI A ENITET A
NEETH 200 7T (ZF—754F £ 1,200
TABTT) RAETE N AN FEZ T AIRZEE
BAITRSIESF A FERZ 10055 T(=
T—/RF 1,300 F&TT) ©

Change in fair value of financial instruments represented the
aggregate of (i) HK$1,676 million fair value gain on hedging
instruments designated as fair value hedge (2016: HK$95 million
loss) and HK$1,676 million fair value loss on the hedged items
(2016: HK$86 million gain); and (i) HK$2 million fair value loss on
derivatives not qualified as hedges for accounting purposes (2016:
HK$12 million) and HK$1 million fair value gain on debt securities
issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss (2016:
HK$13 million).
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10. Operating expenses

2017 2016
F#&x FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
8 A A Staff costs
— e RAER — Salaries and benefits 176,713 164,057
— BRREKA — FRE — Pension costs — defined
HEITL contribution plans 12,060 10,017
DRE Premises
— e — Rental 32,420 30,966
— Hfth — Others 6,589 6,400
== iokn Directors’ fees = =
MEESS5NREE Emoluments in respect of directors’
EESNEMRS other services in connection with
M T zMe : the management of the affairs
of the Company:
—He  ELRELD — Salaries, allowances and bonus 6,184 5,132
— NIRRT RIFTEZ (3K — Retirement scheme contributions 616 508
718 (BfE 23) Depreciation (Note 23) 14,415 15,885
W27 MRS Financial information services 6,015 6,266
JBit m] 2% Consultancy fees 16,526 9,676
EmaELH Other operating expenses 32,658 27,786
304,196 276,693
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1. ZEUnENE 11. Auditor’s remuneration
2017 2016
F#&T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ZHININE ¢ Auditor’s remuneration:
— FZARS — Audit services 1,735 1,485
— HAnARkss — Other services 2,151 1,425
3,886 2,910
12. HEZRFIRZZHE 12. Net gains on disposal of investments
2016
F&T
HK$'000
HERRHKE 2 Net gains on disposal of investments:
—ZYF—H—H — Realisation of amounts recognised
2 T 6% S 0 58 TA B9 FRIR in reserves up to 1 January 83,161 122,970
— RFE W a5 — Net gains arising in current year 80,377 36,871
163,538 159,841
13. BEREIE (X&), E% 13. [Charge)/write-back of loan impairment
allowances
2016
F&IT
HK$'000
RRORE (%), Bk : (Charge)/write-back of loan impairment
allowances:
— AE1HE (£ 19(0)) — Collective assessment (Note 19(b)) (453) 713
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14. BiIn 14. Taxation

(a) FLHREWBERNIMRMIBINA : (a) Taxation charge in the consolidated income
statement represents:

2017 2016
F#ET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFEH Hong Kong profits tax:
— HEF I — Current tax 21,676 27,543
— JEFERR — Adjustment in respect of prior years 421 9,373)
22,097 18,170
BB FERIN Deferred taxation:
— REFEXH,GRE) — Charge/(credit) for current year 240 (409)
22,337 17,761
LA [E 7= A B (il U R IR B R AR Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
16.5% ( —F — 754 : 16.5%) By Fi & (2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
ITRBBANBHIL T o BLERIAR year. Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
FEE16.5% (= F — /N F : 16.5%) differences under the liability method using a principal
HEEREITE 2 A ER Z50 © taxation rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%).
AREFWBRB AR NI S RKA R The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
ERETENRICSTANESIT ¢ from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

BR A5 BT 42 ) Profit before taxation 828,732 621,745
1216.5% (—ZF—7% : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
MR EITE (2016: 16.5%) 136,741 102,588

ALK Tax effect of:
— BAET A — income not subject to taxation (158,786) (112,754)
— DRI A FF 2 — expenses not deductible for

taxation purposes 43,961 37,300
— IEFEERR — adjustment in respect of prior years 421 9,373)
I &2 Taxation charge 22,337 17,761
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(b) MBFRARAMBINEEA : (b) Provision for taxation in the statement of financial
position represents:

2016
T
HK$'000
AT IR = Current tax assets
(BETE4E~=] M) (included in “Other assets”) 351 2,322
12 RERR BT 7= Deferred tax assets 295 =
646 2,322
= EAFH IR B (R Current tax liabilities 116,288 94,745
158 FE R I A fFa Deferred tax liabilities - 16,660
116,288 111,405
F=2—tF+_A=+—HRKZ=ZE There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation as at
—NF+ZA=+—H HEEME 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016.
KA BB ERIN o
BRI (R =) /SR ) == Z B ED The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities and
DRERNZHAT the movements during the year are as follows:
RERE
ERMITIA  Impairment
Accelerated  allowances AFEE
tax and Fair value BEE
depreciation provisions changes Total
THT THT TAT TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-F-—"F-A—H As at 1 January 2016 3,114 (3,240) 37,219 37,093
FURERFA Credited to income statement (303) (106) = (409)
FREAEFEA Credited to equity - - (20,024) (20,024)
FZE—RFE+-A=1t—H Asat31December 2016 2,811 (3,346) 17,195 16,660
TheERMME,/ (FA) Charged/(credited) to
income statement 558) (315) - 240
FREATA Credited to equity = = (17,195) (17,195)
F=-Z—+tF+=HF=+—H Asat31December 2017 3,366 (3,661) - (295)
FH=NAN - TEMERSERI There is no significant amount of deferred tax assets/
RiE SRR BEE o liabilities to be settled within twelve months.
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15. Iz 2 15. Dividends

F_E—tEFHTRARE  F=ZF—RX No dividends were paid in 2017 and the dividends paid in 2016
FENN-_ZE-—RAFERENT25ZET in respect of 2015 were HK$725 million (ordinary dividend of
(E@EREFRERBR036258TT) - T= HK$0.3625 per ordinary share). On 13 April 2018, the directors
ET-NFHA+=H ZEIILEZLE " annouced that no dividend will be paid in respect of 2017 in view
EZEME_T—tFEPRARE ° of business development.

16. MERIEHAGE 16. Cash and short-term funds

R1ITIL S Cash at banks 93,799 58,444
RITERTFER Time deposits with banks 25,184,391 23,757,227
25,278,190 23,815,671
MU ERERME N RERINSIE For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
BEATERZBHEIT=1ANEEH equivalents comprise the following balances with less than three
YR e months" maturity from the date of transaction.
2017 2016
F#&x FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RTINS Cash at banks 93,799 58,444
RITEEER Time deposits with banks 14,992,391 6,044,390
e kERINETE Cash and cash equivalents 15,086,190 6,102,834
17. R FI B RICRR 17. Interest and remittance receivables

PATR % Ty Rz A1 8. Interest receivable from:
— MEEHESN — interest rate swap contracts 143,319 171,054
—IEAER — investment securities 109,921 111,682
— RITE AT K — time deposits with banks 47,075 41,501
WHAEESHMN KT E RS EITSL  Interest receivable and instalments,

in transit from loan portfolio 43,663 35,172

343,978 359,409
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18. $TESfTH

(a)

PTAETAMNA

AREFANATINTET A AER
W BN -

B R BN A — BRI &R 2R
Mm— AN RENAE - EHSH
AT RS ME LS NEEHR - FRE
THMIEMIN - RERXFTF R
g o ARANERRXRAZZHF
REBTHREMBEERHEONE
ERA - RERAREFENESRZ S
NF M BRG] - FLENERK

B o

ETMASRITANBNEH - T
GZEMSRRERBANTARE—D
LEREEAE - MR MRS R RSk
NERENTAXTELRHAF
& - Bt - TR RS E 6 HY
BN B R » fBE M7 H % K&
TR ERFRAN D) - STETAATBE
WAEE = EAB R (R ) A (7
R - STHESRMTANG LN
BNIMBEH - ERENHARR M
BE - ROTAETASRBARAafiz
KN SME - AIBETET RIBIK S © FT#s
BNTETERTERT X

18. Derivative financial instruments

(a)

Use of derivatives

The Group uses the following derivative instruments to
hedge the Group's financial risks.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result in
an exchange of currencies or interest rates or a combination
of all these. No exchange of principal takes place except
for certain currency swaps. The Group’s credit risk
represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts
if counterparties fail to perform their obligations. This risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis under a prudent treasury
counterparty risk management framework.

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments
provide a basis for comparison with instruments recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position but do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair value of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or
price risks. The derivative instruments become favourable
(assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations
in market interest rates or foreign exchange rates relative to
their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional amounts
of derivative financial instruments on hand, the extent to
which instruments are favourable or unfavourable, and thus
the aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and
liabilities, can fluctuate significantly from time to time. The
fair values of derivative instruments held are set out below.
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a4/
ZL&H ATE 2P AF(E
Contract/ Fair values Contract/ Fair values

notional "= il notional R fifk
amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liabilities

TR FET FHT THT T THL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

() THARANF2UAE () Derivatives not qualified as hedges

MFTETA for accounting purposes
Flkpan Interest rate swaps 3,017,791 6,235 (2,188) 183467 6,618 (261)
6,235 (2,188) 6,608 (261)
(i) AEEXNRTETA (i) Fair value hedge derivatives
Fil=EH Interest rate swaps 13,908,877 176,586 (65,975 19,232,500 238449 (100,476)
Gt Currency swaps 7,302,494 150,906 (50,901) 7,218,109 - (1602122
327,492 (116,876) 238449 (1,702,599
BEBIMIETA Total recognised derivative
R/ (fuff) B assets/(labilities) 333727 (119,064) u5097  (1,702,859)
(b) &z (b) Hedging activities
WPTE T EER RN FEXN RIS Derivatives may qualify as hedges for accounting purposes if
A it EmE  STETEA they are fair value hedges or cash flow hedges. The Group's
KRS RF & KRR A& o AEFR A FE fair value hedge principally consists of interest rate and
A EERIEATRERE £1THRS currency swaps that are used to protect interest rate risk
IE 5N FEME R EIEE 2N FT 5 2 and foreign currency risk resulting from any potential change
2= XU B R ANEXUES B ) 20 S 4= in fair value of underlying debt securities issued. There were
HeF_E—LFF+_A=+—8HK no derivatives designated as cash flow hedges as at 31
ZE-—RE+tZA=+—8 " HEfE December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

AHEE AR RIS APITET A o
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19. A S HE 19. Loan portfolio, net
(a) ERASEKE (a) Loan portfolio less allowance
2017 2016
FET T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Es&%ﬂ%‘f?x BE Residential mortgage portfolio 7,484,605 9,084,480
R BITFA Non-mortgage portfolio 345,222 450,346
7,829,827 9,534,826
OREE & Allowance for loan impairment (386) (865)
7,829,441 9,533,961
RHRER SIS RRAE HARE Total allowance for loan impairment as a percentage of the
BARSERNBOLLIT outstanding principal balances of the loan portfolio is as
follows:
2017 2016
TIFUR B % B8 5 DTk Total allowance for loan impairment
PEBFMBE DL as a percentage of the gross loan
portfolio 0.005% 0.009%
(b) BERASHERRERE (b) Allowance for loan impairment on loan portfolio
2016
T
HK$'000
HAETE Collective assessment
F—A—H As at 1 January 865 817
Tz M (=) Charged/(released) to income
(FfF7E13) statement (Note 13) 453 (713)
LG Ing Loans written off (2,084) (581)
I 5] B £ BT 3R Recoveries of loans previously written off 1,152 1,342
F+=—A=+—AH As at 31 December 386 865
EH BT RORE R B8 - B Z EHKIFSR Allowance for loan impairment has been made after taking
BB RITHE ° into account the current market value of the collateral.
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AR & 2T BB B RE DTk o Individually impaired loans collectively assessed on a
HIEUENE portfolio basis are analysed as follows:

BERKEE BAT Gross impaired loan portfolio 381 1,100
TIFOR B % Allowance for loan impairment (381) (829)
- 271
TIFUR AR & R AT Allowance for loan impairment as
HEBHHBA D a percentage of gross impaired
loan portfolio 100% 75.4%
HERRES B 5T Gross impaired loan portfolio as a
HEBFME DL percentage of gross loan portfolio 0.005% 0.012%
(c) FREASHHMEAHAETRAS (c) Net investments in finance leases included in loan
& portfolio
2017
RIEN WAL R SR HA 8 #9 RAE R WAL
A E FMEWA RTEE
Present value Interest Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
TER FTERT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R YR - Amounts receivable:
——FNK — within one year 30,678 6,618 37,296
——FRERFN — after one year but within
five years 109,174 20,535 129,709
—hFRF — after five years 193,169 23,879 217,048

333,021 51,032 384,053
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2016
SRS AR ERR] /Y AR AR £
I E L SIA IS AN
Present value [EEN Total
of minimum income minimum
lease relating to lease
payments future payments
receivable periods receivable
FET FHET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M UERIN Amounts receivable:
— —FR — within one year 38,299 8,293 46,592
——FFERFNR — after one year but within
five years 140,445 25,904 166,349
—RFF — after five years 256,191 31,578 287,769
434,935 65,775 500,710
V578 BB R AR 29 B2 UK ZR M BT OB No allowance for loan impairment has been provided for
BEE - finance lease receivable.
20. EHFIRH 20. Investment securities
(a) TIEHEIES (a) Available-for-sale securities
2017 2016
F#&xT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
N FESK A FS5IE S Debt securities at fair value
TEE LM Listed in Hong Kong 279,317 93,280
FEBRINET Listed outside Hong Kong 2,315,572 1,879,600
E LM Unlisted 2,886,023 2,624,311

RN BT vk 59 E b i 55 Other securities at fair value

TEHEALM Listed in Hong Kong 1,657,750 2,380,486
Al U5 B Total available-for-sale securities 7,138,662 6,977,677
HEMIEAIERX G REES REH= Other securities refer to exchange-traded funds and real
BRERES o estate investment trusts.
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B RATHLAZE R o 4 Al 4 B IE A a0 Available-for-sale securities are analysed by categories of
T @ issuers as follows:

RIT R EME LA Banks and other financial institutions 4,040,368 3,799,257
NEIE Corporate entities 909,924 751,021
R Central governments 499,880 -
NEHM Public sector entities 30,740 46,913
Hifb Others 1,657,750 2,380,486
7,138,662 6,977,677
AR B SRR T - The movement in available-for-sale securities is summarised
as follows:

2017 2016

THET T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FT—H—H As at 1 January 6,977,677 6,638,367
H#0 Additions 3,144,426 4,422,019
HE K ke Sale and redemption (3,212,744) (4,076,381)
P Amortisation (4,493) (2,366)
NEEZED) Change in fair value 191,162 733
HNTSCH Z AR Exchange difference 42,634 (4,695)
F+=—A=+—H As at 31 December 7,138,662 6,977,677

(b) FHEEIHIES (b) Held-to-maturity securities

IR ARG IK A9 ESSIES  Debt securities at amortised cost

FTEBEM Listed in Hong Kong 5,501,627 4,359,124
FEBEIN LT Listed outside Hong Kong 1,959,044 1,834,588
7,460,671 6,193,712

Lt Unlisted 2,887,163 3,737,953
BB E B HIE S B3 Total held-to-maturity securities 10,347,834 9,931,665
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B EITHIZER DT A Z 2 B 5 Held-to-maturity securities are analysed by categories of
I issuers as follows:
2016
T
HK$'000
RIT R E M S R Banks and other financial institutions 4,955,910 5,154,957
NEIE Corporate entities 4,299,090 3,801,339
NEHM Public sector entities 471,079 908,595
R Central governments 621,755 66,774
10,347,834 9,931,665
FREZIMNESFOZEDBARAT The movement in held-to-maturity securities is summarised
as follows:
2017 2016
T FHIT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
F—H—H As at 1 January 9,931,665 10,274,001
40 Additions 3,112,996 676,237
HE K& EE Sale and redemption (2,746,656) (980,514)
HE4H Amortisation (17,279) (15,508)
SN R ZEER Exchange difference 67,108 (22,551)
F+=B=+—H As at 31 December 10,347,834 9,931,665
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21. MBAERE 21. Interests in subsidiaries

FZFE—tF+=ZA=1+—8 " xQAH Details of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2017
M ATHEENT are as follows:
HAFN
HWEAR
(FHREA)
P Fris iR o
BRITRAR R #1E (FHRBA) BNE
(Rer R FiiiMRe  Percentage of
Particulars of issued Percentage of  shares held by
ERE LR and fully paid up shares held by the Company's
Place of FELS share capital the Company subsidiary
incorporation Principal activities (Class of shares) (or its nominee) (or its nominee)
BBRBERER AR i BAREBZERHMN 1,000,000 7T (EiER) 100% NER
HKMC Mortgage Management Limited  Hong Kong WG R HK$1,000,000 (Ordinary) N/A
Mortgage purchases and

servicing, and funding of
microfinance loans

ERARBILARA (F-)BRAR  &E TIR-LEHEBLED 1000BT(EER) TEm TER
HKMC Funding Corporation (1) Limited* Hong Kong No business activity in 2017 HK§$1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
Bauhinia MBS Limited* FEED TS LEALBLE 100%T (SEk) TER TER
Cayman Islands No business activity in 2017 US§1,000 (Ordinary) N/A N/A
BABRIERRER AR &k —BRRUSHEETE  10BT(EER) 100% NER
HKMC Insurance Limited (HKMCI)* Hong Kong Preparatory work for general - HK$100 (Ordinary) N/A
insurance business
BAERERAR! &b KBRELSHZESTE 1008 (ERR) 100% AER
HKMC Annuity Limited (HKMCAY)¢ Hong Kong Preparatory work for long ~ HK$100 (Ordinary) N/A
term insurance business
BARBERRIEARAF i3 TEHRS BT (EER) TER 100%
HKMC Credit & Guarantee Hong Kong Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A
Corporation Limited
Hong Kong Mortgage Credit & i NSRS BT (EaR) TEm 100%
Guarantee Corporation Limited Hong Kong Dormant HK$1 (Ordinary) N/A
* BIREB(ATIZOIIHRT XN TR E * These companies are subsidiary undertakings as defined in Schedule 1 to the
SCRB R o Xt TR W AR B BE SR A Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Company does not hold shares in
ETIRIBIIATRY  MAARESEES these companies which are set up for mortgage purchases and mortgage-
X Lk N TR o backed securities issuance.
# XEENTF B — A AEMRT o & These companies were incorporated in June 2017.
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22. FiftERImm « e REMEE 22. Prepayments, deposits and other assets

2017 2016
TET TFETT
HK$'000 HK$'000
Uz [B] & = Repossessed assets 4,324 943
UNGIE=S 158 Corporate club debentures 750 750
EfbRr= Other assets 62,080 358,116
67,154 359,809
23. EEHR= 23. Fixed assets
PRAERE
ELYET
Office
BEMLESE  equipment, RE
Leasehold furniture H Motor BH
improvement  and fixtures  Computers vehicle Total
BT AL BT AT TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F-F-—"%5-A-H Net book amount as at
NEEET 1 January 2016 11,904 1172 13,262 292 26,630
NE Additions 12 206 7,464 - 7,182
1718 (B 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) 6.211) (709) (8.878) 87) (15,385)
F-Z—7"E+-A=+—HB Netbookamountas at
iR 31 December 2016 5,805 669 11,848 205 18,527
NE Additions 11,879 812 17,526 - 30,217
1718 (K% 10) Depreciation charge (Note 10) 6,131) (599) (7.598) 87) (14,415)
F-E-+t5+=A=t—-H Nethook amount as at
i 31 December 2017 11,553 882 21,776 118 34,329
F-E-t5+-A=+—-H Asat31December2017
AR Cost 39,794 8,576 191,736 775 240,881
211471 Accumulated depreciation (28,241) (7,694) (169,960) 657) (206,552)
K2 Net book amount 11,553 882 21,776 118 34,329
F-Z2-"E+-A=T—H Asat31December 2016
AR Cost 27915 7,834 174,210 775 210,734
211471 Accumulated depreciation (22,110) (7,165) (162,362) (570) (192,207)
KE 24 Net book amount 5,805 669 11,848 205 18,527
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24. MfFFIE 24. Interest payable

2017 2016
F#&x FHTT
HK$'000 HK$'000

AT &I R F & Interest payable from:
— BAITHRSIES — debt securities issued 181,799 206,101
— FEEHE Y — interest rate swap contracts 5,927 9,317
— Hib R — other liabilities 4,407 2,735

192,133 218,153

25. RifFMRIN « RfT AT R EMST 25. Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
= . agugs
51 liabilities

2017 2016

F#&xT FHT

HK$’'000 HK$'000

IVER LIRS IVER B3 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 374,373 107,400

H A5 Other liabilities 4,945,650 5,089,076

Hitnx & Other provision 43,240 31,917

5,363,263 5,228,393
R R P = N =k S R N Ok 53 Other liabilities represented the guarantee fee and fund received
RIE S e PT UL R RO AR 7% I 34 5% (B $0BR (net of claims and related expenses) of HK$626,271,000 (2016:
R NMHERIF X )626271,0008 (== HK$807,181,000) under the special concessionary measures of
—7N4F £ 807,181,000 7T) (Mt£32) - 5 the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (Note 32) and the deferred
FERTZZEE=F+ARZZTMWF consideration of HK$4,319,379,000 (2016: HK$4,281,895,000) used
— A B BT W SE 80 3= 48 53 5045 DT 2 HE hn 9 for credit enhancement on the mortgage loans purchased from

I B9 8 FE K 11 4,319,379,00058 T ( = F the Government in December 2003 and January 2004.

— N4 1 4,281,895,000/87T) ©
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26. (REEFIHERBIREFT = 26. Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

2017 2016
£ BRE kg EH Blrk ]

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
S FhT Fhx TEL TETL TATL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEHRERIBREERER Provision for uneamed premiums
and guarantee fees 1,095,805 160,143 935,662 1,013,155 142,155 871,000

RRBRER - Provision for outstanding claims:
—BHRER — claims reported 7135 193 6,942 10,981 25 10,746
—BFEEREREZ — claims incurred but not reported 27,210 4,265 22,945 A4 3637 0777
34,345 4,458 29,887 35,39 3872 31,923
1,130,150 164,601 965,549 1,048,550 146,027 902,523

(a) RHFHEERBEREAKEET (a) Analysis of movement in provision for unearned
o wnT premiums and guarantee fees

2017

E2 ] BRRE AR E i A

Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TRT TR TR ThL TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

F-A-H As at 1 January 1,013,155 142,155 871,000 943,685 125243 818442
BURERS (Fi1£8) Premiums written (Note 8) 493,459 76,383 417,076 436,577 69,015 367,562
EASRSE (F18) Premiums earned (Note 8) (410,809) (58,395)  (352,414) (367,107) (52,103) (315,004)
F+-A=1-A As at 31 December 1,095,805 160,143 935,662 101315 142,155 871,000
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(b) RRBERZITHTWT (b) Analysis of movement in provision for outstanding

claims
2017
2l BRE A S i A
Gross  Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
TAT TAT TAR TAL TATL BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T-A-H Asat 1 January 35,395 3,872 31,523 35,160 3410 31,750
RARLEES Claims paid (4,978) (510) (4,468) (5,958) = (5,958)
RUEEES Claims recovery 2,448 257 2,191 1,824 159 1,665
BEL/ () HR Claims incurred/(written back)
GEE (Note 8)
—DHRER — claims reported (1,316) 211 (1,527) 5344 77 5,267
—BFEAARERZ  —claimsincurred but not reported 2,79 628 2,168 979) 26 (1,201)
1,480 839 641 4,369 303 4,066
F+-A=1-H As at 31 December 34,345 4,458 29,887 35,395 3872 31,523
() fazEEME (c) Liability adequacy test
BITAGRTERMNAN - ZEREBEY The liability adequacy test considers current estimates
NenERPRABZASHRIE of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows
REMIAMNMGET WXERTF=F such as claims handling costs, the test shows that, as at
—+tF+_A=1t—"HERZ-T—F 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Group’s
+ZA=+—H ' XEFANRK G insurance liabilities are adequate.
TR
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27. EATTRFIES

27. Debt securities issued

2017

TR
HK$'000

2016
TAT
HK$'000

2 38 5 PR 2R Bl i B9 45 S5 IE 35 Debt securities carried at
amortised cost
R HAG 2 MTN 13,260,416 9,097,985
IR A HINR (R SSIE A S50 Total debt securities carried
at amortised cost 13,260,416 9,097,985
EERNI T E FUAFER®  Debt securities designated as hedged
R SIE % items under fair value hedge
75 TR AKTITRIGS DIP notes 2,948,131 3,868,312
H HA i 75 MTN 18,490,213 21,129,785
FEE NI R A HAAFEX R Total debt securities designated as
R SIE A S8 hedged items under fair value hedge 21,438,344 24,998,097
FOHRBEIANEEENUATE Debt securities designated as at
T AREWN RS S fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition
RS TEAERITITNGS DIP notes 141,946 137,385
T HET AR H5 7€ N A A & Total debt securities designated as at
DAL AR B S5 25 B30 fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition 141,946 137,385
B AITHRSIESR B Total debt securities issued 34,840,706 34,233,467

FREART(ZZE—RF : k) THHR
N EER A FEZR LI ARBZHRSIE
Fo BERFUFZAFEEZNRTEE
MR o« THRTINE - FEERAUAAD
FEEMITARSENSRAGIKEE B
REARTEE L E T 2 BIRS 1 [A 5 5 15
B AX M E £ 50D 42,054,0008 T (==
—NEE 1 46,615,000 7T) °

ZERERNARXFEIIKNERABURE
REARNR ZERNRED S REMER

BT e

During the year, no debt securities (2016: nil) were designated on
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. The fair
value changes are attributable to changes in benchmark interest
rates for the debt securities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. The carrying amount of the financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition is HK$42,054,000 (2016: HK$46,615,000) lower than the
amount that the Group would be contractually required to pay at
maturity to the note holders.

There were no significant gains or losses attributable to changes
in the credit risk of the Company for those financial liabilities
designated as at fair value.
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BERITERSIESFNRFIBRAT

The movement in debt securities issued is summarised as follows:

FT—H—H As at 1 January 35,782,600 34,937,768
KT Issuance 28,428,582 24,531,120
B TEE Less: Redemption (29,509,026) (23,686,351)
SNTIIL H ZE AT Exchange difference 4,741 63
B NN EEER Total nominal value 34,706,897 35,782,600
REAEITLEED Unamortised portion of discount (85,832) (93,688)
NEEFE Fair value adjustment 219,641 (1,455,445)
Fr=E=r—F As at 31 December 34,840,706 34,233,467
REFRITHES Notes issued during the year comprise:

BRI I EE

Amount issued at nominal value

Sibilint
MTN

TR
HK$'000

28,428,582

[REEE/ SN

Consideration received 28,397,542

A B RITHRSIE AN B AR S E T A
TfE - MATZERSIUES 5 HRE R
EizRE RIEBRAMRE -

ERXTHRFIEFHRAASREZI DI
PR -

F-A—H
BARDHANSTA
MAEDNALTL,

All the debt securities issued are unsecured obligations of the
Group, and are issued for the purposes of providing general
working capital and refinancing.

Analysis of changes from financing cash flows in debt securities
issued is summarised as follows:

2017 2016

FE T FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

As at 1 January 34,233,467 33,463,211
Cash inflow form financing activities 28,397,542 24,501,707
Cash outflow form financing activities (29,509,026) (23,686,351)

SNTICHESR Exchange difference 4,741 63
EiEUl €A Other non-cash movements 1,713,982 (45,163)
F+=-—A=+—H As at 31 December 34,840,706 34,233,467
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28. P&

BERITRAR :
201Z A% E @A

28. Share capital

Issued and fully paid:
2 billion ordinary shares

2017 2016
TAT

HK$'000

TR
HK$'000

2,000,000 2,000,000

29. 5RAXEALITIMEKXRRS

(@) ARREMERAAKUNCESER
AFMFARE - RRBS A RE
ATV T ZWR G e

SEERANMMEESRERR(F
BEER)NR 5B TFIFM :

0]

(i)

(i)

AAREABRESSERAME
EMFS TERREE X5
SHREEEREERER
S HEMI60FBT(ZF
—A~F 0BT GEEE
ER ERNAFEERZRS
B2

ARAF-F—LE+=H
St-BREEBNLELE
BREFRASCET(ZF
—AE R RANE N0
BI(=B N8 F)

KN B FAFE = E1,66077
BIL(ZF—RF 1,590 7758
T)BRTE EANEEESE
BERARTHFER

RNBTARFERN 0T

—E—REFE 0BT TE
BEER  ENERZATHR
5% K&

SINCESBELBESERAR
X AR 30012 78 7T 40 18 TR =
R T=-ZF—-—tH&+=A
=ST-RFERRBERT(=
T—RF  E)

29. Material related party transactions

(a)

The Company is owned by the Financial Secretary of Hong
Kong as Controller of the Exchange Fund. The Company
entered into various transactions with the following related
parties.

Transactions with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(HKMA), a Government-related entity, included the following:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

the Company subscribed to the custodian and clearing
agent services provided by the Central Moneymarkets
Unit Service operated by the HKMA and paid HK$1.6
million (2016: HK$1.5 million) by way of fees to the
HKMA for such services during the year,

the Company held investment of HK$500 million (2016:
nil) in the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Bills and Notes
as at 31 December 2017 and the interest thereon was
HK$0.1 million (2016: nil);

the Company incurred secondment fee of HK$16.6
million (2016: HK$15.9 million) for secondees from the
HKMA during the year;

the Company paid back-up site service fee of HK$0.6
million (2016: HK$0.6 million) to the HKMA during the
year; and

the Exchange Fund through the HKMA had provided
the Company with a HK$30 billion Revolving Credit
Facility, and there was no outstanding balance as at 31
December 2017 (2016: nil).
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S5BHR S ELE THIFI Transactions with the Government included the following:

()  AREFAEFEE @V EA] T{: (i)  the Company purchased mortgage loans of HK$293
YA B W) SE2.9312 7 o ( — million (2016: HK$170 million) from The Financial
—~E 1.7{Z5%7’E)TE?EJ?$K ; Secretary Incorporated during the year; and
&

(i) AREFIABHFR/NEERE (i)  the Company provided a loan guarantee product
RITH - REAMLEROERSE with 80% guarantee coverage under the existing
IR R BB BUR 32 A5 B B 5T FR AR SME Financing Guarantee Scheme (SFGS) at a
1 & 38 2 7 1,0004Z2 78 7T B9 N\ concessionary guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan
B IRARIR R B B AER = @ guarantee commitment of HK$100 billion reimbursable
FBEES THIE32 © by the Government with details set out in Note 32.

FHrZA=+—HNABEXEATH The balance of the amounts due to the relevant related parties as

MATERET : at 31 December are as follows:

BUF
The Government

2016

FHET

HK$'000

E b 7 57 (BffF 25) Other liabilities (Note 25) 4,945,650 5,089,076

b) EEEEBEAR (b) Key management personnel

FEFERANEEXAZEENORRA Key management are those persons having authority
%%ﬁt B R Hl AR = S E) A and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling
CBEEEERSREEAR - the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including

directors and senior officers.

AREETE A RBEFEN e FE - Key management personnel compensation for the year

comprised:

2017 2016

THET FHT

HK$°'000 HK$'000
e kHEMEHRE AR Salaries and other short-term

employee benefits 21,426 20,547

BIEREF Post-employment benefits 2,088 1,997

23,514 22,544
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30. 7% 30. Commitments
(a) #XF (a) Capital

2017 2016

TH T T

HK$'000 HK$'000

EHUERITE Authorised and contracted for 4,176 321
EHLEBRRITY Authorised but not contracted for 41,784 9,549

45,960 9,870

(b) ZEFHELH

TERHK - RETIHNZER
L9 e B AR SRR AR (502
SR

(b) Operating lease

Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease at the end of the reporting period are
analysed as follows:

2016
THAT

HK$'000

DAEY Office premises:
— " F—%F — not later than one year 49,179 29,753
— 5T —FE=FEZTHE — later than one year and not later
than five years 94,993 -
144,172 29,753

31. RIBIRENWF 31.

F_E—+tF+-_A=1+—H ' A&EHAH
KGR BEAN N 212 B TT( ZF—71F
168427 7T) » HAR 3528 (ZF—784F ¢
27427 70) B Mz & B R A AW X BR
i MASENETEER 176125 T
(ZE—NE M ZBT) R
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Mortgage insurance business

As at 31 December 2017, the total risk-in-force of the Group is
approximately HK$21.1 billion (2016: HK$16.8 billion) of which
HK$3.5 billion (2016: HK$2.7 billion) is ceded to the approved
reinsurers and the balance of HK$17.6 billion (2016: HK$14.1 billion)
is retained by the Group.

Annual Report 2017



32.

33.

R/ ERE BT B R T R T RO 45 A
Bk

ARBIRIA R PNEERA BRI - 52
AR BB AR R K S B BT A B 52
FARIUE AR ET Y 1,000 1278 7T B AR AR AR
(2 A BT SIB AR 7= dm o BB LTV I (5 SRR
T ERERE  BEAE2HATX
AR R IRIRE N RABARTTX - B RK
M3 I35 BT = a0 P HER B9 4B 4R 2% 1 2
AR HEAFTFARTER - BFE2AER
Mo RARARM MW EEHAERR
BB -

BREMFRINORRER @ NAEH
MZE A RERAB RERFAOBA - &
NREREMBEBERT I RBEZMW -
ETARBRARRRBNEZ L™ M &
SHEIA A R m e KM A = 8 T
BT = Bt - %7 m e K e AR AR A 5
TARKRANE AR  ARIEM K
AR RAERN R AT R XS AT
Al RAER o

REMEREEM

ARA T _FE-—LFRNABITE-F
—N\FHETREFSITHINTE - NE
STAERBRNAE NRARRITEWEA -
FEL T BERRILERRERARRERF
SEBRLBMEMMBERGR - ARIBFAFX
MR AlEERRE N — RS EE
EESFRITH -

TE-NF_HA+-H ' ARAHK
2,999,999,900 % 7T)F A B BRI {R B A BR
NEMEREZEBTHE R1TEARK
Ao HhHERARRTHRGD - T-F
—N\F-A+WHA  FERERRERRD
AERRE L 5 E R IEXRN - ATAZL ER
B AN A AR LE SR H) — AR R P b 55 © SERK
Bt/ AREERRR LS E DR IER
HETHABBELE RRIEASHR
TN 2N AN SR ) Bl S5 ER B A
I o

32.

33.

Special concessionary measures under the SME
Financing Guarantee Scheme

The Company provided a loan guarantee product with 80%
guarantee coverage under the existing SFGS at a concessionary
guarantee fee rate and up to a total loan guarantee commitment
of HK$100 billion reimbursable by the Government. All guarantee
fees collected under this special loan guarantee product are set
aside to meet the relevant default claims and related out-of-pocket
expenses. The remaining balance of the guarantee fees, if any, will
be returned to, and any shortfall will be borne by, the Government.
The Company is responsible for the operation of the product and
the applicable day-to-day operating costs.

Regarding this special loan guarantee product, there is no impact
on the consolidated income statement of the Group in respect
of guarantee fee revenue, default claims or any direct expenses
involved. Given that the Company operates only this product
for the Government, the Group considers the risk and rewards
associated with this product rest with the Government. Hence, the
risk-in-force for this product has not been included as the Group’s
off-balance sheet exposures and no capital charge is required
under the Guidelines on Capital Adequacy Ratio approved by the
Financial Secretary.

Events occurring after the reporting period

The Company approved in June 2017 the plan for implementing
the Life Annuity Scheme (LAS) in mid-2018. To comply with the
relevant authorisation requirements, the Company has kick-started
a corporate re-organisation and established two subsidiaries, the
HKMCI and the HKMCA to apply for the necessary authorisation
and respectively to take up the Company’s general insurance
business and to operate the LAS.

On 12 February 2018, the Company injected HK$2,999,999,900 to
make up issued and paid-up capital of HK$3 billion of the HKMCI
without allotting and issuing new shares. On 14 February 2018,
the HKMCI was granted formal authorisation from the Insurance
Authority to carry on general insurance business which will be
transferred from the Company. After completion of the transfer,
the Company will apply to the Insurance Authority for withdrawal
of its authorisation to carry on general insurance business in or
from Hong Kong. It is not expected to have significant impact on
the Group's business as a whole.
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34. ZIE’AEJ B SRARREEE 34
5

UNEXATNF_F—tE+_H
=t+—HHMFZFRRER

31 December 2017

Statement of financial position and reserve
movement of the Company

34.1 Statement of financial position of the Company as at

2016
T4
HK$'000
"= ASSETS
NeRTERE Cash and short-term funds 25,273,955 23,809,977
RICF) B RS C 5k Interest and remittance
receivables 337,353 352,559
MESHIA Derivative financial instruments 333,727 245,097
TIFEE 2N Loan portfolio, net 5,110,754 6,244,373
IEHIER Investment securities:
— A E — available-for-sale 7,138,662 6,977,677
—FAEZEEH — held-to-maturity 10,347,834 9,931,665
IEPNGIE % Interests in subsidiaries 2,533,099 3,103,552
I~ =e & Prepayments, deposits and other
B R = assets 67,224 357,734
EE &~ Fixed assets 34,329 18,527
126 RE R 10 6T 7= Deferred tax assets 319 =
BRE R Reinsurance assets 164,616 146,072
BB Total assets 51,341,872 51,187,233
R LIABILITIES
IVERERIESS Interest payable 192,133 218,153
RATIRIRN ~ RS B Accounts payable, accrued
H i fR expenses and other liabilities 5,362,257 5,228,098
PTESRMTEAE Derivative financial instruments 119,064 1,702,859
= HARR 1047 7 Current tax liabilities 116,288 94,745
1 EFR I A fi Deferred tax liabilities - 16,608
RS 1R Insurance liabilities 1,130,309 1,048,908
B AT IS Debt securities issued 34,840,706 34,233,467
R Total liabilities 41,760,757 42,542,838
D& EQUITY
i Share capital 2,000,000 2,000,000
RE & A Retained profits 34.2 5,693,762 4,822,686
ST Contingency reserve 34.2 1,679,837 1,739,389
NEEFEE Fair value reserve 34.2 207,516 82,320
N5 B8 Total equity 9,581,115 8,644,395
AR RN &S Total liabilities and equity 51,341,872 51,187,233
EERETZT/\FHA+T=A#LE Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
RN FIAT Directors on 13 April 2018.
BER Norman T. L. Chan 5 Raymond L. C. Li

BIFEFMTEE  Deputy Chairman and Executive Director — HMiTE FH# S Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
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34.2 KATNIESE 34.2 Reserves of the Company
REET RE#EE  ATE#ES

Retained Contingency Fair value E#

profits reserve reserve Total

TAT THET TAT THEL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F-5—75—A—H As at 1 January 2016 5,058,386 1,632,660 184,533 6,875,579

KERRF Profit for the year 596,029 - - 596,029

Hih e Other comprehensive income:
AEEEIFAHATETS  Changeinfair value of available-for-sale
Securities

— RENg AT — net unrealised gains - - 733 733

— HERE — realisation on disposal - - (122,970) (122,970)

i — tax effect = = 20,024 20,024
AEELERE Total comprehensive income for the year 596,029 = (102,213) 4933816
BRE R R EHS Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium

MR 241K 50% 3 75%  eamed from retained profits to

ENRIER contingency reserve (183,043) 183,043 - =
HNGESREEREEF  Release of contingency reserve to

retained profits 76,314 (76,314) - -
ENZE-RERE Dividends paid related to 2015 (725,000) - - (725,000)
F-Z—E+-A=1—H8/ Asat31December 2016/

“E—+t%-R—H 1 January 2017 4,822,686 1,739,389 82,320 6,644,395
REFRT Profit for the year 811,524 - - 811,524
Hivmla Other comprehensive income:

AEHETAM A TETE  Change infair value of available-for-sale
securities

— RN 25 — net unrealised gains - - 191,162 191,162

— HERTH — realisation on disposal - - (83,161) (83,161)

— M — tax effect - - 17,195 17,195
AFELENGRH Total comprehensive income for the year 8115524 - 125,196 936,720
BRE RN R E RS Transfer of 50% or 75% of net risk premium

N RE 25 50%375%  eamed from retained profits to

ENEIER contingency reserve (200,730) 200,730 - =
HNRESREZREEF  Release of contingency reserve to

retained profits 260,282 (260,282) - -
F-E-t&+=-A=+—H Asat31December 2017 5,693,762 1,679,837 207,516 7,581,115
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3B. EETXSH  THWESHFH 35.

EXFEXZR

HE-Z—tF+-A=1+—HIFER -
PEETFT BT AKEA TR RERN —
77 NARFMSEEEN  BERENR
ARBEENATREFRERFARE A
BAEPDE) EL P AEERIEAREAF
BERENEARS - RHMEY

36. BEMFZRE

EERT -2 /N\FOA+=BEIEAM
SR ©

36.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2017, there
subsisted or entered into any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Company’s business, to which
any member of the Group was a party, and in which any person
who was a director of the Company at any time in the year or a
connected entity (as defined in the Companies Ordinance) of any
such person had, directly or indirectly, a material interest.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors
on 13 April 2018.
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